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VISION 
 

To establish and steer the Company towards development of the Project 
Highway, the Bikaner- Phalodi Section on NH-15, in the State of Rajasthan 

and ensuring the users of the project highway are benefitted thereof and 
achieving higher revenues from the constructed toll plazas and making the 
Company stand at par in delivering the expected project output within the 

optimum time period.  
 

 
 
 
 

I. Constructing through site planning, scheduling of project activities, 
leveling and laying the land, installing systems for measuring quality 
of construction.  

II. Responsibly monitoring the implementation and operationalization of 
the project.  

III. Ensuring increased usage of highway over the tenure of concession 
by keeping a check on toll rates, enabling plying of more and more 
cars and commercial vehicles on the road, revising the toll rates 
based on effective traffic sampling.  

IV. Curtailing costs and channeling resources into required areas. 
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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS 
 

Dear Shareholders,  
 
At the outset, please accept my sincere wishes for the good health and safety of you and your 
loved ones. I am delighted to welcome you all at the Eighth (8th) Annual General Meeting of Ircon 
PB Tollway Limited (IrconPBTL) and present the Audited Statements for the Financial Year 2021-
22. I would like to thank each one of you for making it convenient for joining the AGM. 

 
About the Company  
I would like to highlight to the esteemed members of this Company, that your Company 
entrusted with the execution of Bikaner-Phalodi Toll Road Project for four laning from km 
4.200 to km 55.250 & two laning with paved shoulder from Km 55.250 to Km 163.500 of NH-
15 on Build, Operate &Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis in the State of Rajasthan, has commenced 
its Commercial Tolling Operations from February 2019. 
 
The project has entered into commercial tolling operations and started earning revenue through 
toll collection at all the three toll plazas viz. Salasar, Nokhra and Kheerwa, on the complete road 
length of 159.17 km. During the FY 2021-22, the total revenue collected from tolling operations 
was Rs.47,14,24,645. 
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Financial Performance 
Your Company has for the financial year ended 31st March 2022 has recognized revenue 
from operations viz. operating turnover of Rs.5546 Lakhs in terms of INDAS 115 “Revenue 
from Contract with Customers” including Construction Contract Revenue under Service 
Concession Arrangement (SCA) in its statement of profit and loss.  
  
The Company has incurred a Net Loss before tax of Rs.2462 Lakhs and Net Loss after tax of 
Rs.2462 Lakhs for the financial year ended 31st March 2022- due to project and other 
expenditure booked on account of works contract expenses incurred for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2022. 
 
Further, the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (‘CAG’) have issued NIL Comments on 
the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 
Compliances and Disclosures 
Compliances and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and its associated rules 
thereunder are fully being adhered to. CPSEs constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are 
exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence, 
these are not applicable on your company. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) 
 
Your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from signing Memorandum of 
Understanding for the financial year 2022-23 in line with MoU Guidelines. 
 
Acknowledgement 
I render sincere thanks and gratitude to the Holding Company, Ircon International Limited, 
Board Members, Auditors of the Company and the valued client of the Company i.e., NHAI for 
continuous support and cooperation extended to the Company and lending the financial and 
administrative support.  I am also thankful for the whole-hearted support of the Banks, 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and 
Secretarial Auditors. I, also sincerely place my appreciation for the good work done by all the 
employees at all levels of the Company. 
 
We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.  
 

For and on behalf of 
Ircon PB Tollway Limited 

 
            Sd/- 

(Ashok Kumar Goyal) 
Chairman  

DIN: 05308809 
Date: August 4, 2022    
Place: New Delhi 

4



 

 
 

Board’s Report 
FY: 2021-22 

 

 

5



     Annual Report – 2022 (IrconPBTL) 
 

DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
Dear Members, 
 
Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 8th Annual Report together with the 
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

1. BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: 
 
Ircon PB Tollway Limited (IrconPBTL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International 
Limited (IRCON) incorporated on September 30, 2014 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) 
with the main object to execute the project of carrying on the business of widening and 
strengthening of the existing Bikaner & Phalodi Section to four lane from 4.200 km to 55.250 
km and two Lane with paved shoulder from 55.250 km to 163.500 km of NH-15 on Build, 
Operate and Transfer (BOT) (Toll) basis in the State of Rajasthan. The Company obtained 
approval for Commencement of Business on November 14, 2014. 
 

IrconPBTL has entered into Concession Agreement with NHAI on November 7, 2014. The 
concession period of the project is 26 years from the Appointed Date, with the total project 
cost of Rs.844.08 Crore. The total length of road constructed is 159.17 km and in equivalent 
2 lane is 210.22 km (Four laning: 51.05 km and two laning: 108.12 km). Out of 159.17 Km, 
the provisional certificate of completion of construction for road length of 156.650 Km was 
issued by NHAI on February 15, 2019, for commencement of tolling operations at all the 
three toll plazas located at Salasar and Nokhra in Bikaner District and Kheerwa in Jodhpur 
District, Rajasthan. The provisional certificate was upgraded for the balance length of 2.520 
km on November 4, 2020. The Construction works at the Bikaner-Phalodi Project have been 
completed. 
 
The project has entered into commercial operations and started earning revenue through toll 
collection at all the three toll plazas on the complete road length of 159.17 km. During the FY 
2021-22, due to 2nd wave of COVID-19 from April 2021 to May 2021, the toll collection was 
affected. Maintenance of highway and toll collection contract awarded to M/s KABA Infratech 
Pvt. Limited has been foreclosed on June 08, 2021. Subsequently, on auction the highway 
maintenance and toll collection work, is awarded to M/s Coral Associates and the agency has 
started working since June 09, 2021.  

Toll Revenue: 

The revenue collection from three toll plazas located at Salasar, Nokhra in Bikaner District 
and Kheerwa in Jodhpur District, Rajasthan: 
 
Toll / Corridor Name Toll collection during the FY 2021-22 
Salasar (TP – 1) 23,40,17,868 
Nokhra (TP – 2) 14,42,75,934 
Kheerwa (TP – 3) 9,31,30,843 

Total 47,14,24,645 
 
During the FY 2021-22, the average per day revenue collection increased to Rs 12.91 Lakh 
compared to Rs 11.78 Lakh in FY 2020-21. 
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On account of various delays due to NHAI, there are pending payments, claims which are not 
getting reimbursed. These claims have been submitted to NHAI for resolution within a 
considerable time-frame, however, due to non-consideration by NHAI and as per the 
provisions of the Concession Agreement, IrconPBTL has approached for Arbitration. The 
matter is sub-judice under Arbitral Tribunal.    

        
2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:  

 
In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial 
Year 2021-22 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).  
  
Financial performance indicators as on 31st March 2022: 

                                                                                                       (Amount in Rs. in Lakh) 
Sl. 
No. Particulars 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2022 

For the Year 
Ended 

31.03.2021 
1.  Equity Share Capital 16500 16500 
2.  Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 441 (3676) 
3.  Net Worth 16941 12824 
4.  Borrowings 24066 33600 
5.  Intangible Assets under Development - - 
6.  Total Assets and Liabilities 48478 50934 
7.  Revenue from Operations 5546 5486 
8.  Other Income 32 44 
9.  Total Income (7) + (8) 5578 5530 
10.  Profit/(Loss) Before Tax  (2462) (1309) 
11.  Profit/(Loss) After Tax (2462) (2138) 

12.  

Earnings Per Equity Share (on face value of 
Rs.10/- per share) 

(i) Basic 
(ii) Diluted  

 
 

(1.49) 
(1.49) 

 
 

(1.30) 
(1.30) 

 
 

3. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE: 
 
The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2021-22. 
 
As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the 
head ‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of Rs 441 
Lakhs in Retained Earnings as on March 31, 2022. 
 

4. SHARE CAPITAL / DEMATERIALISATION: 
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The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 31st 
March 2022 is Rs.175 Crores comprising of 17,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each and 
Rs.165 Crores comprising of 16,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each respectively.  
During the year under review, there was no change in the share capital of your Company, 
and Ircon International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-up share capital of 
IrconPBTL. 
 
 
As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment 
Rules, 2019 dated 22.01.2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WoS) is not 
required to get its securities in dematerialised form.  
 

5. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT: 
 
 The total Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is Rs.3656 Lakh. 
 

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
 
For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of 
the Company. 
 

7. IMPACT OF COVID-19: 
 
The Company has taken all the prescribed precautions as suggested by the Government, to 
mitigate the impact of the novel coronavirus. The details on impact of COVID-19 pandemic 
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements. 

  
8. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL: 

 
Board of Directors: 
 
CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22 
  
As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by the 
holding company, IRCON. During the FY2022, Company’s management is headed by the 
following Non-Executive (Nominee) Directors: - 
 
Category, Name & 
Designation DIN Appointment or Cessation (during 

the year, if any) 
Mr. Shyam Lal Gupta 
Chairman  07598920 Ceased to be Director & Chairman 

on 13.05.2021 

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra 
Chairman 07654014 

Appointed as Director & Part-time 
Chairman on 13.05.2021 and 
Ceased to Part-Time Director and 
Chairman on 01.10.2021 

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal* 
Director 05308809 - 
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Mr. Mugunthan Boju Gowda 
Director 08517013 - 

Mr. Masood Ahmad 09008553 
Appointed as Director on 02.08.2021 
Regularized at the 7th AGM on 
August 18, 2021 

Ms. Ritu Arora 07752915 
Appointed as Director on 13.05.2021 
Regularized at the 7th AGM on 
August 18, 2021 

Mr. Parag Verma 
Director 05272169 Appointed as Director on 29.12.2021 

*Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal was designated as Chairman of the Company w.e.f. 01.10.2021.  
 
After the closure of the FY 2021-22, Mr. Mugunthan Boju Gowda ceased to be Director of the 
Company subsequent to withdrawn of his nomination and appointment of Mr. Rohit Parmar 
as Part-time Director by IRCON w.e.f. June 1, 2022.  
 
As on the date of this report, the Board comprised of five directors viz., Mr. Ashok Kumar 
Goyal (DIN: 05308809), Mr. Parag Verma (DIN: 05272169), Mr. Masood Ahmad (DIN: 
09008553), Ms. Ritu Arora (DIN: 00002455) and Mr. Rohit Parmar (DIN: 08190141).  
 

 
The Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable contribution and guidance & 
support given by Mr Shyam Lal Gupta and Mr Yogesh Kumar Misra during their tenure as 
Directors of the Company. 
Mr. Parag Verma  and Mr. Rohit Parmar were appointed as Additional Part-time Directors of 
the Company w.e.f. December 29, 2021 and June 1, 2022 respectively, who hold office upto 
the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. Their appointment as Directors by the 
Shareholders has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM.  
 
The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from 
Mr. Parag Verma and Mr. Rohit Parmar giving their candidature for appointment as Directors, 
liable to retire by rotation, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal shall 
retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of your Company and being eligible, offers 
himself for re-appointment. 
 
None of the Directors is disqualified from being appointed/re-appointed as Director. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
Pursuant to Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the Company 
has designated the Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and 
Company Secretary (CS) as the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company. 
 
The Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year 2021-22 are as follows– 
 

Key Personnel of 
Company  Date of Appointment Date of Cessation Designation  

Mr. Raju Maruti March 18, 2021 - Chief Executive 
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Kambale Officer  

Ms. Meenakshi Garg August 11, 2020 July 01, 2021 

Chief Financial 
Officer 

Mr. Nagendra Joshi July 01, 2021 August 03, 2021 

S.K. Bandyopadhyay August 03, 2021 January 01, 2022 

Mr. Anil Kaushal February 24, 2022 - 
Mrs. Anuradha 
Kaushik  January 31, 2020 - Company 

Secretary 
 
After closure of the FY 2021-22, Mr. Anil Kaushal ceased to be the CFO of Company on June 
02, 2022 and Shri Vinod Prasad was appointed as CFO w.e.f. June 02, 2022, Mrs. Anuradha 
Kaushik ceased to be the Company Secretary of Company on June 30, 2022.  
 

9. Board Meetings: 
 
During the FY 2021-22, the Board met six (6) times on June 15, 2021, July 19, 2021, August 
10, 2021, November 10, 2021, February 08, 2022 and March 23, 2022. The interval between 
the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The 
attendance details of the Board Meetings are as follows: 
  
Date of the Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

June 15, 2021 4 4 

July 19, 2021 4 4 

August 10, 2021 5 5 

November 10, 2021 4 4 

February 08, 2022 5 5 

March 23, 2022 5 5 
 

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held during 
the FY 2021-22 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting (AGM): 

Name of 
Director 

Meeting date   Total 
Board 
meeting
s held 
during 
the 
tenure 

No. of 
Board 
meeting
s 
attended 
  

% of 
Attendanc
e in Board 
Meeting 
  

Whether 
attended 
last AGM 
held on 
18.08.202
1 15

.0
6.

20
21

 

19
.0

7.
20

21
 

10
.0

8.
20

21
 

10
.1

1.
20

21
 

08
.0

2.
20

22
 

23
.0

3.
20

22
 

Shri 
Yogesh 
Kumar 
Misra 

   
– – – 3 3 100 Yes 

Shri Ashok       6 6 100 Yes 
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Kumar 
Goyal 
Shri B. 
Mugunthan       6 6 100 Yes 

Ms. Ritu 
Arora       6 6 100 Yes 

Mr. Masood 
Ahmad – –     4 4 100 Yes 

Mr. Parag 
Verma – – – –   2 2 100 N.A. 

 
 

10. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE: 
 
In terms of notification dated July 5, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
inter-alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary is exempted from 
the requirement of appointing Independent Directors on its Board also constituting of the 
Board Committees viz. Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC). 
 
IrconPBTL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON, 
is, therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the 
declaration by the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company. 

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)’s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 read 
with OM dated July 11, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are 
exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. 
Hence, Corporate Governance Guidelines of DPE are not applicable on IrconPBTL. 
 

11. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company confirms: 
 

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended  
31st March 2022, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 
b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and 

estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 2022 and of 
the Profit of the Company for that period ended on that date; 

 
c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
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e) those proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
 

12. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
 
The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is 
appended as Annexure – A forming part of this report. 
 
 

13. DIRECTOR’S OBSERVATION AND COMMENT’S FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT: 
 
The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need 
no further explanation. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report 
which require any clarification/explanation. 
 
 

14. AUDITORS: 
 
Statutory Auditor: 
 
M/s A. N. Garg & Company, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 vide CAG letter dated August 18, 
2021. They have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate as required under 
Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Cost Auditor: 
 
The Board of Directors have appointed M/s Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost 
Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2021-22 for conducting the audit of cost 
records maintained by the Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.  
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with Companies (Cost 
Records and Audit Rules), 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records. 
 
Secretarial Auditor: 
 
The Board of Directors have appointed M/s. Jayesh Parmar & Associates, Company 
Secretary, as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2021-22. 
 
Internal Auditor: 
 
The Board of Directors appointed M/s. H.K. Khanna & Associates., Chartered Accountants as 
Internal Auditors for the FY 2021-22, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company. 
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15. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
  
There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review. 
 
 

16. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
 
During the year, the related party transactions were with the holding company, IRCON and in 
the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the 
Companies Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 is enclosed 
to this report as “Annexure – B”. 
 
 

17. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION 
OF THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR: 
 
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company had 
occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report. 
 

18. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 
The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder: 
 

A. Conservation of energy: - 
 

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 
 

B. Technology absorption: - 
 
Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of 
particulars is not applicable to the Company. 
 

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo: - 
 
There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year 
2021-22. 
 

19. RISK MANAGEMENT: 
 
In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to 
the business of the Company. 
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20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
 
The requirement of constituting Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee pursuant 
to the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the 
Company. 

 
 

21. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 
 
As per Notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 
Government Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.  
 
IrconPBTL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the 
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the 
Directors' Report. 
 
 

22. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
There is no change in the nature of business of the company during the financial year 2021-
22. 
 
 

23. PUBLIC DEPOSITS: 
 
During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members 
pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014. 
 
 

24. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the 
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly 
maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your Company 
continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its 
size and nature of its business. 
 
 

25. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE  
 
No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern 
status of the Company and its operations in future during the FY 2021-22. 
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26. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE 

PREFERNCE POLICY 
 
In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise 
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies 
registered under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than Rs.500 Crore and all 
CPSEs shall be required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables 
Discounting System (TReDS) platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of 
India. The Registrar of Companies (RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to 
monitor the compliance of such instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, 
Government of India shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such 
instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance with the above instruction, the Company has 
boarded on the TReDS platform to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by 
discounting of their receivables and realisation of their payment before the due date. 
 
During the FY 2021-22, your Company has procured items valuing Rs.0.08 lakhs vis-à-vis 
total annual procurement target of Rs.0.20 lakhs. 
 
 

27. DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013: 
  
During the period under review, there was no complaint pending at the beginning nor any 
complaint relating to sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 
 
The Company being a whole owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable 
on the Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON will deal with all the 
matters under POSH Act. 
 
 

28. VIGIL MECHANISM: 
 
The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to establishing of Vigil 
mechanism are not applicable to Company. 
 
 

29. RIGHT TO INFORMATION: 
 
During the financial year 2021-22, your company has not received any application under the 
Right to Information Act 2005.  
 

30. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:  
 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has, vide its notification dated 5th June 2015, notified the 
exemptions to Government Companies from certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
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which inter-alia provides that Section 134(3)(p) regarding a statement indicating the manner 
of formal annual evaluation of Board, shall not apply to Government Companies in case the 
Directors are evaluated by the Ministry which is administratively in charge of the Company as 
per its evaluation methodology.  
 
Further, the aforesaid circular issued by the MCA has also exempted that sub-section (2), (3) 
& (4) of Sec. 178 regarding the appointment, performance evaluation and remuneration shall 
not apply to Directors of Government Companies. 
 
Being a government company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, 
all part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of 
these nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line 
with the guidelines of the Government of India. 
 
 

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS  
 
During the year, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards 
issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).  
 
 

32. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT  
 
The “Secretarial Audit Report” from the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 as required under 
section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is placed as Annexure – C to this 
Report. The Secretarial Auditor has given an unqualified report. The report is self-explanatory 
and does not require any further comments by the Board. 
  
 

33. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS  
 
The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for FY 2021-22 with nil 
observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report along with No review 
Certificate from Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) of India for the FY 2021-22. 
 
 

34. APPLICATION / PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY 
CODE, 2016 
 
There are no proceedings initiated / pending against the Company under the Insolvency & 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company. 
 
 

35. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU): 
  

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from 
compliance of Annual MOU exercise in line with the MOU Guidelines. 
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36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 

 
We thank Ircon International Limited, Auditors and our valued client- National Highway 
Authority of Indian for their support, and look forward to their continued support in the future. 
We thank our Contractors, Sub-contractors, Bankers, for their continued support during the 
year. We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees 
at all levels. Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, 
cooperation and support.  
 

 
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Ircon PB Tollway Limited 
 

                                                                    Sd/-                                                                                                                                                                                         
Ashok Kumar Goyal 

Chairman 
DIN: 05308809 

 
Date: August 4, 2022 
Place: New Delhi 
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ANNEXURE – A 
 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on Financial Year ended on 31st March 2022 
 

(Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and  
Rule 12(1) of the Company (Management &  

Administration) Rules, 2014) 
 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 
1.  CIN U45400DL2014GOI272220 
2.  Registration Date 30th September 2014 
3.  Name of the Company Ircon PB Tollway Limited 
4.  Category/Sub-category of the 

Company 

Government Company  
(Wholly-owned Subsidiary Company of Ircon 
International Limited) 

5.  Address of the Registered office & 
contact details C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017 

6.  Whether Listed or Unlisted Company Unlisted Company 
7.  Name, Address & contact details of 

the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if 
any. 

Not Applicable 

 
II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: 

  
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the 
company shall be stated 

 

   S.No. Name and Description of Main 
Products / Services 

NIC Code of the 
Products/Services 
 
 

% to Total Turnover 
of the Company 

   1. Rendering Services in the nature of 
construction of Project Highway on 
Bikaner-Phalodi Section (NH-15) in the 
State of Rajasthan:  
 

Construction Services: Highway Project   
(Through EPC Contractor) 

 
42101 

 
100% 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

 

S.NO. 
NAME AND 
ADDRESS OF 
THE COMPANY 

CIN/GLN 
HOLDING/ 
SUBSIDIARY 
/ASSOCIATE 

% of 
Shares 
held 

Applicable 
Section 

   1 
IRCON 
INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED 

L45203DL1976GOI008171 Holding 
Company 100% * Sec 2(46) 

 

    * 100% Shares held by Ircon International Limited (IRCON) and its 7 Nominees. 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN  
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
 

    A) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING: 
 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year, 

[As on April 01, 2021] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on March 31, 2022] % Change 

during 
the year   

Demat Physical Total 
% of 
Total 

Shares 
Demat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 

A. Promoters          

(1) Indian           

a) Individual/   
HUF 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Central 
Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) State 
Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies 
Corp. 

Nil 165000000 165000000 100% Nil 165000000 165000000 100% Nil 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

(2) Foreign - - - - - - - - - 

Total 
Shareholding 
of Promoters 
(A) 

Nil 165000000 165000000 100% Nil 165000000 165000000 100% Nil 

           

B. Public 
Shareholding 

         

1. 
Institutions 

         

a) Mutual 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

c) Central 
Govt 

- - - - - - - - - 

d) State 
Govt(s) 

- - - - - - - - - 

e) Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs 
- - - - - - - - - 

 h) Foreign 
Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 
(B)(1): 

- - - - - - - - - 
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Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 
the year 

[As on April 01, 2021] 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
[As on March 31, 2022] 

% Change 
during 

the year 

 

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares - 

2. Non-
Institutions          
a) Bodies 
Corp. 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Indian - - - - - - - - - 
ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 
b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - 
c) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Non-Resident 
Indians 

- - - - - - - - - 

Overseas 
Corporate 
Bodies 

- - - - - - - - - 

Foreign 
Nationals 

- - - - - - - - - 

Clearing 
Members 

- - - - - - - - - 

Trusts 
- - - - - - - - - 

Foreign 
Bodies  

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total 
(B)(2): 

- - - - - - - - - 

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1) + 
(B)(2) 

- - - - - - - - - 

C. Shares 
held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & 
ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) Nil 165000000   165000000 100% Nil 165000000 165000000 100% Nil 

Notes: 
 

(1) IrconPBTL is a wholly-owned subsidiary company of Ircon International Limited (IRCON). 
(2) 16,49,99,200 shares of Rs.10/- each held by IRCON and 800 shares of Rs.10/- each are held by 7 

nominees shareholders “for and on behalf of Ircon International Limited” i.e. six nominee holding 100 
shares and remaining one nominee shareholder is holding 200 shares. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20



   Annual Report – 2022 (IrconPBTL) 
 

B) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS: 
 

S.No. 
 

Shareholder’s 
Name 
 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year 

[As on April 01, 2021] 

Shareholding at the end of the 
year 

[As on March 31, 2022] 

% 
Chang

e in 
Shareh
olding 
during 

the 
Year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
Total 

Shares 
of the 

Compan
y 

% of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumber 
ed to total 

shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of 

the 
company 

% of 
Shares 

Pledged / 
encumbere
d to Total 

Shares 
  1 Ircon 

International 
Limited* 

165000000 100% Nil 165000000 100% Nil Nil 

 Total  165000000 100% Nil 165000000 100% Nil Nil 
 

* Shareholding of Promoters: List of share holdings by IRCON and its nominees as on March 31, 2022 are 
attached herewith as Annexure-1. 
 

C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING:  
 

 

S.No. 
 Particulars 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year 

[As on April 01, 2021] 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

[As on March 31, 2022] 

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company 
1. At the Beginning of the Year 16,50,00,000 100% 16,50,00,000 100% 
2. Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons 
for increase / decrease (e.g., 
allotment /transfer / bonus/ sweat 
equity etc.): 

NIL 

3. At the End of the Year 16,50,00,000 100%  16,50,00,000 100% 
 
D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:  
     (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS): 

 

 S.No. For Each of the Top 10 
Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 
[As on April 01, 2021] 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year  

[As on March 31, 2022] 

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of Total 
Shares of the 

Company 
1.  At the Beginning of the Year 

 
NOT APPLICABLE 

2.  Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons 
for increase /decrease (e.g., 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ 
sweat equity etc): 

3.  At the End of the Year 
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E) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 

Shareholding of Each Director(s) 
and Each Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP)* 

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the Year 

[As on April 01, 2021] 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the Year 

[As on March 31, 2022] 

No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of the 

Company 
At the Beginning of the Year  

NIL 

Date wise Increase / Decrease in 
Promoters Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for 
increase /decrease (e.g., allotment / 
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 
At the End of the Year  

 

* 100 equity shares of Rs.10 each held by Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Mr. Parag Verma and Ms. Ritu Arora, 
Directors of the Company “For and on behalf of Ircon International Limited (IRCON).” 

F) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/ accrued but not 
due for payment. 

   (Amount in Rs.) 
 Particulars Secured 

Loans 
excluding 
deposits 

Unsecured 
Loans 

Deposits Total 
Indebtedn

ess 
 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the 
financial year     

i) Principal Amount 336,00,00,000 0 0 336,00,00,00
0 

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0 

Total (i+ii+iii) 336,00,00,000 0 0 336,00,00,00
0 

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year 

 
 

  

* Addition 0 0 0 0 

* Reduction 95,34,41,446  0 
0 0 

Net Change   
  

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year 

    

i) Principal Amount 240,65,58,554 0 0 240,65,58,55
4 

ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0 

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 0 0 0 

Total (i+ii+iii) 240,65,58,554 0 0 240,65,58,55
4  

 
 
 
 

22



   Annual Report – 2022 (IrconPBTL) 
 

 
 

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-  
 
A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND / OR MANAGER: 
 

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration* Name of MD / WTD / 
Manager 

Total 
Amount 

1. Gross salary 

NOT APPLICABLE 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 
Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 
Income- tax Act, 1961 

2. Stock Option 
3. Sweat Equity 
4. Commission 

- as % of profit 
- others, specify… 

5. Others, please specify 
  Total (A)  
  
  

 Ceiling as per the Act 
 

* IrconPBTL has part-time Director nominated on the Board by “IRCON”, the holding company. They do not 
draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fees is paid to the Part-time Directors. 

  
B.  REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS: 
 

S.No. Particulars of Remuneration@ Name of Directors Total 
Amount 

1. 
 

Independent Directors   
  

  
  
  
  

NOT APPLICABLE 
  
   

 

Fee for attending board committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 
Total (1) 
Other Non-Executive Directors 

2. 
 

Fee for attending board committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 
Total (2) 
Total (B)= (1+2) 
Total Managerial Remuneration 
Overall Ceiling as per the Act 

@ All the Part-Time Directors during the Financial Year 2021-22 are nominated on the Board of the Holding 
Company. They do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-Time 
Directors. 
 
 
 
 

23



   Annual Report – 2022 (IrconPBTL) 
 

 
C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD): 

 
                                                                                                                                              (Amount in Rs.) 

S. 
NO. 

Particulars 
of 
Remunerati
on  
  

Key Managerial Personnel 

CEO  Company 
Secretary 

CFO  Total 

  Shri  
Raju Maruti Kambale* 

(w.e.f.  
18.03.2021) 

Ms. 
Anuradha 
Kaushik 

Ms. 
Meenakshi 

Garg  
(upto 

01.07.2021) 

Mr. 
Nagendra 

Joshi  
(w.e.f. 

01.07.2021 
upto 

03.08.2021) 

Mr. Sandip 
Kumar 

Bandyopad
hyay 

(w.e.f. 
03.08.2021 

upto 
31.12.2022) 

Mr. Anil 
Kaushal 
(w.e.f. 

24.02.2022) 

 

1 Gross 
Salary        

(a) Salary 
as per 
provisions 
contained in 
section 
17(1) of the 
Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

 
2677747 

 

 
 

591946 
 
 

 
 

412104 
 
 

 
 

218837 
 
 

 
 
 
 

2730593 
 

- 

 
 

(b) Value of 
perquisites 
u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

- - - - - - - 

(c) Profits in 
lieu of 
salary 
under 
section 
17(3) 
Income-tax 
Act, 1961 

- - - - - - - 

2 Stock 
Option 

- - - - - - - 

3 Sweat 
Equity 

- - - - - - - 

4 Commissio
n 

- - - - - - - 

 -  as % of 
profit 

- - - - - - - 

 others, 
specify… 

- - - - - - - 

5 Others, 
please 
specify 

- - - - - - - 

 Total 2677747 591946 412104 218837 2730593 -  
 

 

 

Note: Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 is exempt for Government Companies in terms of notification 
dated 5th June 2015 of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
 

VI. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: 
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Type Section of the 

Companies 
Act 

Brief 
Description 

Details of Penalty 
/ Punishment/ 
Compounding 
fees imposed 

Authority 
[RD / 

NCLT/ 
COURT] 

Appeal 
made, 

if any (give 
Details) 

A. COMPANY 
Penalty  

NIL Punishment 
Compounding 
B. DIRECTORS 
Penalty  

NIL Punishment 
Compounding 
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 
Penalty  

NIL Punishment 
Compounding 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

Sd/- 
(Ashok Kumar Goyal) 

Chairman 
(DIN: 05308809) 

Place: New Delhi  
Date: August 4, 2022 
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Annexure-1 
 
 
 
 
 

List of Shareholding by Ircon International Limited and its nominees 
(As on March 31, 2022) 

 
S.No. Name of the Shareholder No. of shares held (of 

Rs.10/- each) 
1. Ircon International Limited 16,49,99,200 

2. Shyam Lal Gupta 200 

3. Ashok Kumar Goyal 100 

4. Shri Surender Singh 100 

5. Subhash Chand 100 

6. Parag Verma 100 

7. Ritu Arora 100 

8. Mugunthan Boju Gowda 100 

TOTAL 165000000 
 

* After Closure of FY 2021-22, IRCON withdrawn nomination of Mr. Surajit Dutta and Mrs. 
Anupam Ban as nominee shareholder and nominated Ms. Ritu Arora and Mr. Surender 
Singh. 

* 100 shares each held by six nominee shareholders and 200 shares held by one nominee 
shareholder, all are officials of IRCON, Holding Company. 
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Annexure-B 
 
 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered by the Company 
with related parties referred in section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, including 

certain arms-length transactions under third proviso thereto 
 

[Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(2) of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: NIL 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis: As 
follows: 

S.No. 
Nature of 
Contracts / 
arrangement / 
transactions 

Duration of the 
Contracts / 
arrangement / 
transactions 

Salient terms of 
the Contracts / 
Arrangements / 
Transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

Date(s) of 
approval 
by the 
Board, 
if any: 

Amount 
paid as 
advances
, 
if any: 

1. Lease 
Agreement* 
(To take on 
lease 
Company 
Registered 
Office 
from Ircon 
International 
Limited) 

Date: 
Lease Agreement 
dated 18th March, 
2021 (Renewal) 
 
Duration:  
Two Years  
(01st April, 2022  
to 31st March, 
2023)* 

Lease Agreement 
executed on 18th 
March, 2021 for 
rent @ 
Rs.21,236/- p.m. 
plus GST* 

_ NIL (as 
on date) 

Lease agreement with IRCON has been renewed w.e.f. 01.04.2021 till 31.03.2023 for rent 
@Rs.21,236/- p.m. plus GST. 

 

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of  
Ircon PB Tollway Limited 

 
   

                                                                       Sd/-                                                                           
          Ashok Kumar Goyal 
Date: August 4, 2022                                                                                                     Chairman  
Place: New Delhi                  DIN: 05308809 
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ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT 
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANICAL YEAR ENDED 31~T MARCH, 2022 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014J 

To 
The Members, 
MIs. mCON PB TOLL WAY LIMITED 
Regd . Office: C-4, District Centre, Saket 
New Delhi-110017 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate governance practice by IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED having 
CIN: U45400DL2014G0I272220 (hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial Audit was 
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / 
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended 31st March, 2022, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board 
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and rehlrns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 according to the 
provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the A.ct) and the Rules made there under; 
(ii) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India: 

Applicability of SS-J and SS-2; 
(iii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there 

under to the extent of foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, External 
Commercial Borrowings; 

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

We report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors and Non-Executive Directors . The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act. 
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and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda 
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

We further report that compliance of applicable financial la\vs including Direct and Indirect Tax 
laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review 
by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals. 

\Ve further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
ru les, regu lations and gu idelines. 

Place: New Ddhi 
Date: May 10. 2022 
UDIN: 1\0270550000296467 

For Jayesh Parmar & Associates 
Company Secrctaries 

Jnycsh Parmar 
(ProprictOl') 
ACS No.:27055 
c.p No.: 15007 

This rq)llrt is to be rend with Ollr letter of even date which i annexed as 'Annexure A' and forms an 
integral pnl1 of this report. 

Office Add: 8-62, Madipur Colony,New Delhi- 110063 
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Annexure A 
To 
The Members 
Mis. mCON PI3 TOLL WAY LIMITED 

Our rep0l1 of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion . 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

S. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 10, 2022 
UDIN: A027055D000296467 

For Jayesh Parmar & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Jaycsh Parmar 
(Proprietor) 
ACS No.:27055 
c.p No.: 15007 

Office Add: B-62, MadipurColony,New Delhi- 110063 
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To The Members IRCON PB Tollway Ltd 

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Mis IRCON PB Tollway Ltd (a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Mis IRCON International Limited ("the parent Company"), which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement 
of other Comprehensive Income, the statement of Cash Flow Statement and the Statement 
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including 
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act 
2013, as amended ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 
the Company as at March 31, 2022, and Its losses including other Comprehensive Income, 
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing ("SA"s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us IS sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Standalone lnd AS financial statements of the current period. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separa')"t~3"" 
opinion on these matters. G"RG « 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Compa ny's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
Information comprises Directors Report alongwith its annexures including Secretarial Audit 
Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Such 
other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so consider whether the 
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

When we read the report mentioned above, if we conclude that there is a materia l 
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with 
governance. As the other information is not made available to us as atthe date of this auditor's 
report, we have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of 
the Company's Act ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including Other 
Comprehensive Income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 
of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
select ion and app lication of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the fina ncial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to 
do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting 
process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poliCies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

We draw attention to Note No. 36(b) of Financial statements which describe the 
management's assessment of financial impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) 
pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the subsequent period 
is dependent on the circumstances as they evolve. 

Our opinion is not modified in this respect. 
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Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, 
we give in the Annexure-I a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 
4 of the Order to the extent applicable, 

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of such 
checkS of the books and records of the company as we considered appropriate and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, in the Annexure-II on the 
directions and sub-directions Issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

3. (A) As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the 
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit, 

b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books, 

c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in 
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account, 

d. the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

e. Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 
5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, 
provisions of sub-section (2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not 
applicable t o t he Company; 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer 
to Annexure III; 

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in 
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

a. The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its 
financial position; 

b. The company did not have long term contracts including derivative contracts 
for which there were any material foreseeable losses; 

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
. Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

d. (i) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign 
entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate 
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Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the IJltimate Beneficiarie~ . 

(ii) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, no funds have been received by the Company from any persons 
or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
by or on behalf of the Funding Parties or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(iii) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to 
our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule l1(e) contain any material mis-statement. 

e. The Company has not declared or pa id dividend during the year. 

(C) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GsR 463(E) 
dated 5th June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of 
India, provisions of sub-section (16) of Section 197 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, 
are not applicable to the Company; 

For A. N. GARG & COMPANY 

A.N.GARG 
(FCA, Partner) 
M.No.-083687 

Place: DELHI 
Date: 23-05-2022 
UDIN: 22083687AJMHAB5680 
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Annexure-I 

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to paragraph (1) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our report of even date) 

(i) 

(ii) 

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particul~rs 

Including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

(6) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets 

(b) The Company has conducted physical verification of the property, plant and 
equipment during the financial year under audit, and no discrepancies observed 
related to fixed assets appearing under Fixed Assets Register. 

(c) The Company does not have any immovable property (other than properties 
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed 
in favor of the lessee), consequently clause 3(i)(c) of the Order IS not 
applicable. 

(d) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued 
Its property, plant and equipment (including right of use assets) or intangible 
assets or both during the year. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings 
initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property 
under the Prohibition of Benaml Property Transa~1:ions Act, 1988 "nd rules 
made thereunder. 

(a) The company does not have any Inventory and consequently, clause 3(ii)(a) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 
from banks or financial Institutions on the basis of the security of current assets 
at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(il)(b) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

(iii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not 
made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans 
or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, 
Limited liability Partnerships or any other parties, consequently, clause 
3(iii)(a)(b)(c)(d)(e)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 

(iv) The Company has not given any loan, guarantee, security or made investment a5 
stipulated under Sections 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, consequently, clause 3(iv) 
of the Order Is not applicable. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be 
deposits from the public. Accordingly, claus., 3(v) of the Order IS not applicable. 

(Vi) 
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(vi i) (a)The company has been regular in aepositlng with appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund , 
employees' state insurance, income-tdx, sales- tax, service tax, duty of customs, 
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory dues as 
applicable to It, Bemg a wholly owned subsidiary of MIs IRCON International lImitea 
(the parent company), majority of the employees are on standby deputation baSiS, 
therefore, statutory dues related to such employees, such as Provident Fund, 
Employees State Insurance Company, Professional Tax, as applicable, are being 
deducted and deposited by the parent cOrJlpany, However, Employees who are on the 
payroll of the company, all the employees related statutory dues, such as Provident 
Fund, Professional Tax d5 applicable, are being deducted and deposited by company on 
regular basis. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state Insurance, Income-tax, 
sales- tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any 
other statutory dues were In arrears as at 31 March 2022 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable 

(b)Detaiis of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been 
depDsited as Dn March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are qlven below: 

Nature of the Nature of Forum where Period to Amount 
statute dues the dispute is which the if crore 

pending amount relates 

The Income Income Tax Income Tax AY 2018-19 132 
Tax Act, Appellate 
1961 Tnbunal 

(viii) According to the information and explanations qlven to us and on the baSis of our 
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or 
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, 
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. 

(ix ) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted 
in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon 
to any lender. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basi5 of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been 
declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financlallnstltutron or government or 
government authority. 

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us 
by the management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the 
loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds 
raised on short-term basiS have been used for long-term purposes by the 
Company. 

(e) 
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(x) 

Company has not taken dny funds from any entity 01 person on account of or 
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, as defined in the Act. The Company 
does not hold any investment in any associate or joint venture (as defined in 
the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022. 

(f) According to the Information and explanations given to us and procedures 
performed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries (as defined under the 
Act). 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
not raised moneys by way of initial public offer (including debt instruments). 
Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly clause 3(x)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according 
to the information and explanations given to us, conSidering the prinCiples of 
materiality outlined In the Standard of Auditing, we report that no fraud by the 
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course 
of the audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub­
section (12) of Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form 
ADT -4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) We have taken Into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and extent 
of our audit procedures. 

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable. 

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
transactions with related party is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, 
where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures In 
our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size 
and nature of its business. 

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for 
the period under audit. 

(xv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected 
to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to 
the Company. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are 
not applicable. 
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(c) According to informdtion and explanations provided to us during the course of 
aud it, the Group does not have any CICs 

(xVii) The Company has not Incurred cash losses in the current and in the Immediately 
preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly 
clause 3(xviii) of the Order not applicable. 

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, not hing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting Its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period 
of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting 
is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due. 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is 
no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any 
project. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

(xxi) Since there are no Consolidated Financial Statements involved, this clause is not 
applicable to this Company. 

For A. N. GARG & COMPANY 

A.N.GARG 
(FCA, Partner) 
M.No.-083687 

Place: DELHI 
Date: 23-05-2022 
UDIN: 22083687AJMHAB5680 
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Annexure-II 

ANNEXURE OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to paragraph (2) under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our report of even date) 

51. Directions 
No. 

1. Whether the Company has system in place 
to process all the accounting transactions 
through IT System? If yes, the 
implications of processing of accounting 
transactions outside IT System on the 
integrity of the accounts along with the 
financial implications, If any, may be 
stated. 

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an 
existing loan or cases of waiver / write off 
of debts / loans / interest etc. made by a 
lender to the company due to the 
company's inability to repay the loan? If 
yes, the financial impact may be stated. 
Whether such cases are properly 
accounted for? (In easel lender is a 
Government company, then this direction 
Is also applicable for statutory auditor of 
lender company). 

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) 
received/receivable for specific schemes 
from Central/State Government or Its 
agencies were properly accounted 
for/utilized as per its term and conditions? 
List the cases of deviation. 

For A. N. GARG & COMPANY 

A.N.GARG 

(FCA, Partner) 

M.No.-083687 

Place: DELHI 
Date: 23-05-2022 
UDIN: 22083687AJMHAB5680 

Auditor's Replies 

The company has Tally system to 
process all the accounting transacting 
and used for preparation of the financial 
accounts. No accounting transaction has 
been processed outside the IT system. 

Yes, Company applied to lender, its 
Holding Company M/s IRCON 
International Limited, for waiver of 
partial interest on loan. The Holding 
Company has waived off interest on loan 
(refer note 11 and 12) which has been 
accounted as per IndAS. 

There is no funds received or receivable 
in respect of specific scheme from 
Central/State Government or its 
agencies came to our notice during the 
course of audit of financial statements. 
Hence this clause is not applicable. 
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Annexure - III 

ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MIs IRCON PB Tollway Ltd. 

(Referred to paragraph {3(f)} under the heading of "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements" of our report of even date) 

[Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")] 

We have audited the internal financial controls over fi nancial reporting of MIs IRCON PB 
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteri a established by t he 
Company considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note 
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its bUSiness, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financia l information, as required under the Compa nies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over 
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") and the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal financial 
controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofIndia. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require t hat we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls 
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all mater ial respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
Internal financial controls system over financial reporti ng and their operating effectiveness. 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of Internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the 
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only In 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any 
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are 
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become 
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
poliCies or procedures may deter iorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over 
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For A. N. GARG & COMPANY 

(FCA, Partner) 
M.No.-083687 

Place: DELHI 
Date: 23-05-2022 
UDIN: 22083687A1MHAB5680 
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Annexure-II 

Compliance Certificate 

We have conducted the audit of annual accounts of IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022 in accordance with the directions/sub-directions issued by the 
C & AG of India under Section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and certifY that we have 
complied with all the Directions/Sub-directions issued to us. 

(FCA, Partner) 
M.No.-083687 

Place: DELHI 
Date: 23-05-2022 

UDIN: 22083687AJMHAB5680 
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TRCON PO TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN . U45400DL2014G0l272220) 

BALAN CE SHEET AS AT 31st March 2022 

Particulars 

I. ASSETS 

I Non..current Assets 

(.) Property. !>lanf and Equipment 
(b) Intangible A!\set!\ 

(c) Financial Assets 

(i) Othcl's Fin:mciai Asscts 
Total Non-Current Assets 

2 Current Assets 

(0) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

(iii) Loans 

(iv) Other Pinanciai Assets 

(b) Current Tax Assets (Nct) 

(0) Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Total Assets 

II. EQUITY AND L1ABlUTIES 

I Equity 

(.) Equity Share Capital 

(b) Other Equ ity 
Total Equity 

2 Liabilities 
(i) Non-Current Liabil!tl~s 

(.) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade Payablc:s 

(iii) Other Financial Liabi lities 

(b) Provisions 

(0) Dcfem:'d Tax Liabilities Net 

(d) Other Non-Current Liabi lities 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 

(ii) Current Liabilillcs 

(.J Financial Lillbilities 

0) Borrowings 

( ii) Trade Pavnb!es 

- T otal Outstanding Ducs of Micro Enterprises 
ami Sn1<l11 Enterprises 

- Total Outstanding Dues of Creditors Other thlln 

of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 

(0) Other Current Liabilities 

(0) Provisions 
Totul Current Liabilities 

Tohtl Equity and Liabilities 

llI. Summary ofSi mificnnt Accountin" Policies 

IV. Notes fonning part ofFinllncial Statements 

As per our Report of eyeD ~ttachL'tl 

F~~ Chartered Aceo I 

FRN 0 4616N ... "I3i!iJ 
A.N. Garg 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23-05-22 

(Rs. in crore) (Rs. in erore) 

Note 
As nt 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021 

No. 

] 0.23 0.25 
4 450.72 473.78 

5 - -
450.95 474.03 

7.1 l.ll 12.38 
7 .2 3.09 11.30 
7.] - O.OR 
74 22.04 4.1 9 
8 7.0] 6.96 

9 0.56 0.40 

33.83 35.31 

484.78 509.34 

10 165.00 165.00 
II 4.41 -36.76 

169.41 128.24 

12 
12. 1 209.78 297.D4 

IJ 40.28 17.76 

6 7AS 7AS 
- -

257.54 ]22.28 

i4 
30.88 38.96 

- -
14.1 

19.65 15.06 

14.2 7.24 4.76 
15 0.06 0.04 

i.1 
57.8] 58.82 

484.78 509.34 

I - 2 

F~ FI nd 0T\'bchalf of Board of DIrectors 

(M~":~') (MaSO~~A 
(Direct~urr: ~) 
(DIN No . 9008553) 

(R. . K'IIt'lba!c) 

(ChiefExeculive Officer) 

(Director) 

(DIN No. 851701 3) 

~-(Anil Kaushal ) (Anuradh 

(ChiefFim:llce Officer) ( Comp<lIlY 

I 
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mCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED 

(CIN - U45400DL2014G0I272220) 
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022 

(Rs. in crore) (Rs. in crore) 

Particula rs Note No. 
For the yenr ended For the year ended 

31st Ma r 2022 J lst Mar2021 

I Revenue: 
Revenue from operations 16 55.46 54.86 

II Other income 17 0.32 0.44 

III. Total Income (I + II) 55.78 55.30 

IV. Expenses! 
Project Expenses 18 38.48 42.70 
Employee Benefits Expenses 19 2.27 2.46 
Finance Costs 20 16 53 0.01 
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 21 23.10 23.08 
Other Expenses 18 0. 02 0.14 

Total Expenses (IV) 80.40 68.39 

V. Profit Before exceptional items and Tax (III - IV) (24.62) (13.09) 

VI. Exceptiona! it,ems -

VII . Profit before tax (V + VI) (24.62) (13.09) 

VIIL Tax expenses: 

( I) Current tax 
- For the Period -
- For earlier years (net) - -

(2) Deferred tax (net) 6 - 8.29 

Total Tax Expense - 8.29 

IX Profit fo r the year from continuing operation (VII - VIII) (24.62) (21.38) 

X Other Com~rehensive Income 
A. (i) Items that will not be reclassitled to profit or loss - -

(i i) Income Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
- -

B. (i) Items that wiU be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(il) Income Tax relating to Items that wi U be reclassi fied to profit or loss -

- -

XI Total Comprehensive Income for the year (IX +X) (Comprising profit/(Ioss) 
(24.62) (21.38) 

and other co mprehensive income for the year, net of tax) 

XII Eamings Per Eq uity Share: 
(For Continuing Operation) 
(1) Basic 29 (1.49) (1.30) 
(2) Diluted 29 ( 1.49) (1.30) 
Face Value Per Equity Share 1000 10.00 

XIII Summary of Significant Accounting policies 1-2 
XIV Notes forming part offinancial statements A 38 

As per our Report of even date attached tnd ;: behalf of Booed ofDle"tors 

..0 r~ ~~ 
For A.N. Garg ~ ... RG (Mas"'060 Ahmad) (Mu n ~u Gowda) 
Chartered Acco (Dlrecto ) (Director) 
FRN 046 16N :,~ (DIN Nd . 09008553) (DIN No. 85170 13) 

~ J· v (Anl~ 
(Chief Executive Ofticer) (Chief Finance Officer) (Company Secretary) 

Place . New Delhi 
Date : 23-05-22 
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mCON I'll TOLLWAY LIMITED 
(CIN - U45400DL2014GOI272220) 

STATEMENT OF CASIl FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st Mar20n 
(Rs. in crore) 

Particulars For the year ended 31st Mar 2022 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Net Profit before taxation (24.62) 
Adjustment for: 
Unwinding of discount on provisions 1.08 
Depreciation, amortization and impairment 23.10 
Borrowing Cost 15.44 

Interest Income (0.23) 

Operating Profit before Current INoll-Current Assets and 
(1 ) 14.77 

Lianilities 
Adjustment for: 

Decrease I (Increase) in Trade Receivables 11.27 

Decrease I (Increase) in Inventories -
Decrease I (Increase) in Other Assets & Financial Assers (17.94) 

(Decrease) I Increase in Trade Payables 4.60 

(Decrease) I Increase in Other Liabilities, Financial Liabilities & 
23.95 

Provisions 

(2) 21.88 

Cash Generated From Operations (1+2) 36.65 

Income Tax (PDid)lRefund received (0.09) 

NET CASII mOM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 36.56 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment Including CWIP (0.02) 

Purchase of Inlangible Assets! intangible Assets under development -
Interest Received 0.25 

(I nvestment) I Maturity of Bank Deposits (having maturity of more -
than 3 months) 

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (Il) 0.23 

CASH FLOW mOM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

loan From TReON (J folding Co.) -
Rcpaymcl1t of loan to IRCON (Holding Co.) (4500) 

fina l Dividend (including Dividend Distribution Tax) paid -
Interim Dividend (including Dividend DistributIOn Tax) paid -
Adjustment of Prior Period Income in Retained Eamings -
Payment of Fee for increase in Authorised Capital -
Bon·owing Cost -
Payment to DlPAM for Buy Back of Shares -
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (45.00) 

Effect of Exchange differences on translation of Foreign Currency 
(D) -Cash & C<lsh EQuivalents 

NET DECREASE IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS (A+Il+C+D) (8.21) 

OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (E) 11.30 
Cash Balances -
Balance with Blinks c."RG" 11.30 
Short term Investments . (\ 

(Rs. in Cl'orc) 

For the year ended 31st 
March 2021 

(13.09) 

-
23.09 

-
(0.30) 

9.70 

(2.80) 

-
47.52 

8.05 

16.96 

69.73 

79.43 

0.18 

79.61 

(0.1 4) 
(0.0 1) 

0.30 

-

0.15 

(8 1.22) 

-
-

-
-

-

(81.22) 

-

(1.46) 

12.76 

-
12.76 
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CLOSING CASH AND CAS" EQUIVALENTS (V) J .09 11.30 
Cash Balances - -
Balance with Banks 3.09 11.30 
Short term Investments - -
NET INCREASE I (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH 

(F-E) (8.21) (1.46) 
EQ UlV ALENTS 

Notes 
1. The above Cash flow Statement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method"as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (lod AS) - 7 on Statement 

2. Reconciliation ofeash and Cash Equivalents and Components ofeash and Cash Equivalents included in the above Standalone 
Statement of Cash Flows: 

In Rs Crores 
Particulars I As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021 

Cash in hand 

Cheques/drafts in hand 
Remittance in Transit 

Balances with banks: 
- On current accounts 1.60 2.13 
- Flexi Accounts 1.49 9.17 
- Deposits with oriqinal maturity of less than 3 months - -

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet and 
3.09 1l.30 

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows 
"Out a/total balance of & 3.09 Crares, Rs 1.50 Crores pertam to ESCROIV AlC wlilch are earmarked/lind as per concessIOn agreement entered wllh NHAI 

3. Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities: 

Rs in CrOI·es 
Particulars Borrowings 
As allst April 2020 417.23 

(a) Cash flows during the year (81.22) 

(b ) Non cash changes durin g the year due to: 

Transition impact of lnd AS 11 6 

Interest Accrued 

As at 31st March 2021 336.01 
(a) CashOows during the year (4500) 

(b) Non cash changes during the year due to: 
Transfer to Deemed Capital Contribution (65.79) 

NOlionallnterest 15.44 

As at 31st March 2022 240.66 

4. Figures in brackets represent outflow of cash. 

5. Figures of the previous year have been regrouped I recasted I restated wherever necessary. 

As per our Report of even date attached 

FCA Partner·....:::::::=""' .... 

M. No. 083687 

UDIN 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 23-05-22 

For and on behalf of Goard of Directors 

~ -
(Mugllnl Jan B . I Gowda) 

(Director) (Di rector) 

(DIN No: 9008553) (DIN No. 8517013) 

f 
(R.M. Kalnbale) (AI~ (Anuradh Kaushik) 

(Chief Execlltive Officer) (Chief Finance O fficer) ( Company SecretaI)') 
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1. Corporate Information 

Ircon PB Tollway Limited ('Ircon PBTL') (CIN) U45400DL2014GOI272220) is a wholly owned 
subsidiary of Ircon International Limited ('IRCON'). The Company came into existence when 
IRCON incorporated IrconPBTL on 30.09.2014 on account of work awarded by NHAI for widening 
and strengthening of the existing Bikaner - Phalodi Section to 4 lane from Km. 4.200 to Km. 55.250 
and 2 Lane with Paved shoulder from Km. 55.250 to Km. 163.50 of NH 15 in the state of Rajasthan 
on DBFOT (Design, Built, Finance, and Operate & Transfer) basis in accordance with the terms 
and conditions in the concession agreement signed with NHAI. In pursuant to the provisions of 
'Request for Proposal', the selected bidder 'IRCON' formed IrconPBTL as Special Purpose 
Vehicle (SPV). The Company obtained Certificate of Commencement of Business on 10th Oct 
2014 from the office of Registrar of Companies. Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession 
Agreement with NHAI on 7th Nov 2014. As per provisions of Concession Agreement Article 24, 
clause 24.1, the Concessionaire is obliged to achieve financial close within 180 days from the 
date of agreement so that NHAI may notify the date of appointment, known as Appointed Date 
before physical commencement of the project. The financial close was completed by 
concessionaire during the financial year 2015-16; accordingly, the appointed date was fixed by 
NHAI on 14th Oct 2015. The concession period of 26 years including construction period 
commenced on 14th Oct 2015 on Appointed Date notified by the NHAI. NHAI is to provide Viability 
Gap Fund (VGF) of Rs.327.00 crores as per provisions of the concession agreement 

Company received provisional Commercial Operation Date (COD) on 15th Feb 2019 and 
subsequently 2nd provisional certificate on 4th November 2020. 

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in 
financial statements are presented in crore, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share 
data and as otherwise stated. 

2. Summary of Significant Policies 

2.1 Basis of preparation 

i. The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notifie9 under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and 
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS 
compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements. 

ii. The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual 
system of accounting. The company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and 
liabilities, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair 
value: 

• Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present 
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• Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

2.2 Current vs non-current classification 

i. The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non­
current classification. 

ii. An asset is treated as current when it is: 

• Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle 
• Held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, 
• Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a 

liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

iii. The company classifies all other assets as non-current. 

iv. A liability is current when: 

• It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 
• It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 
• . It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or 
• There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 

v. The company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. 

vi. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. 

vii. The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their 
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The company has identified twelve months as its 
operating cycle .. 

2.3 Statement of Cash Flow 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of 
the Company are segregated based on the available information. 

2.4. Property, Plant and Equipment 

i. Recognition and in/lia! measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of each item 
can be measured reliably. Property, Plant and Equipment are initially stated at their 

tvv 
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Cost of asset includes 

Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates. 

(a) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met. 
(b) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing 

asset to its working condition for the intended use. 
(c) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the 

indirect construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction 
or is incidental thereto. 

(d) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring 
the site on which it is located if recognition criteria are met. 

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement 

• Property, Plant and Equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if 
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to 
the company and cost of the expenditure can be measured reliably. 

• Cost of replacement, major inspection, repair of significant parts and borrowing costs 
for long-term construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met. 

• The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met. 

iii. Depreciation and Useful lives 

• Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment, excluding freehold land is provided 
on straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in 
schedule II of the Companies act, 2013 given as follows: 

Particulars 
Building/flats residential/ 
non-residential 

Plant and Machinery 
Survey instruments 
Computers 
Office Equipments 
Furniture and fixtures 
Caravans, Camps and temporary shed 
Vehicles 

Useful lives (Years) 
60 

8-15 
10 
3-6 
5-10 
10 
3-5 
8-10 
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• Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the 
cost of part is significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that 
part is different from the useful life of remaining asset. 

• Property Plant and Equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to 
. Rs. 5000/- are fully depreciated, by keeping Re. 1 as token value for identification. 

However, Mobile phones provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and 
loss irrespective of its value. 

• Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. "Ordinarily, the residual value of 
an asset is up to 5% of the original cost of the asset" as specified in Schedule II of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

iv. Derecoqnition 

• An item of Property, Plant and Equipment and any significant part initially recognized 
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is inciuded in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

2.5 Capital work in progress 

Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried 
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. 

2.6 Investment Properties 

i. Recoqnition and Initial Measurement 

• Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be 
measured reliably. 

• Investment property comprises completed property, property under construction and 
property held under a lease that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or 
both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course of business or for use in production or 

. administrative functions. Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including 
tra nsaction costs. 

• Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other 
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, 
where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognized in 
accordance with the specific requirements of other Ind AS. 

ii. Subsequent Measurement and Depreciation 
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• Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment loss, if any. Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria 
is met. The company depreciates building component of investment property on 
straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase/ completion of 
construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated. 

• Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property 
are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

• Though the company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, 
the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined 

, based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent 
valuer applying valuation model acceptable internationally, 

ii i. Derecoqnition 

Investment Properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are 
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is 
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition , 

2.7 Intangible Assets 

i. Recoqnition and Initial Measurement 

• Intangible Assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits 
that are attributable to the asset will flow to the company and cost of the asset can be 

, measured reliably, Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial 
recognition at cost. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization 
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working 
condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles, exciuding capitalised 
development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the 
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred, Intangible 
assets not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed 
as "Intangible assets underdevelopment" 

ii, Subsequent Measurement and Amortization 

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any, Software cost up to Rs. 1 Lakhs in each case is fully amortized 
in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. 1 as token value for identification. 

• The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date of 
its acquisition, 
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• Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is 
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for 
use/disposed 

•. Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial 
year end. 

iii. Derecoqnition 

• An Intangible Asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de­
recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in 
the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognised. 

iv. Toll Collection Right (Toll Road Service Concession Arrangement) 

a) In respect of Public to Private Arrangements (PPA), on a Built-Operate-Transfer (BOT) 

basis, Intangible Assets i.e. Right to collect toll/tariff are recognised when the company 

has been granted rights to charge a toll/tariff from the users of such public services 

and such rights do not confer an unconditional right on the Group to receive cash or 

another Financial Asset and when it is probable that future economic benefits 

associated with the rights will flow to the company and the cost of the asset can be 

measured reliably. 

b) The company constructs or upgrades infrastructure (construction or upgrade services) 

used to provide a public service and operates and maintains that infrastructure 

(operation services) for a specified period of time. These arrangements may include 

infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire 

useful life. 

c)· Under the Concession Agreements, where the company has received the right to 

charge users of the public service, such rights are recognised and classified as 

"Intangible Assets" in accordance with Appendix C to Ind AS 115 - Service Concession 

Arrangements. 

d) Such right is not an unconditional right to receive consideration because the amounts 

are contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised 

IJ:'ji~F~~'fu'ed as intangible assets. Such an intangible asset is recognised by the U{ 
/1i£j::.~c 0 

L 
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company at cost (which is the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for 

the construction services delivered) and is capitalized when the project is complete in 

all respects and when the company receives the completion certificate ( Provisional or 

Final) from the authority as specified in the Concession Agreement. 

e) An asset carried under concession arrangements is derecognised on disposal or when 

no future economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal. 

f) Service Concession Arrangements that meet the definition of an Intangible Asset are 

. recognised at cumulative construction cost. Till completion of construction of the 

project, such arrangements are recognised as "Intangible Assets Under Development" 

and are recognised at cumulative construction cost. 

g) The Company recognizes Viability Gap Funding(VGF) in the nature of equity support. 

Total expected amount of VGF is reduced from intangible assets under development 

(being created under the service concession arrangement) and receivable under 

current financial assets is recognized. Any amount received against the VGF is then 

reduced from the current financial assets. 

h) The estimated useful life of an intangible asset in a service concession arrangement 

is the period from where the company is able to charge the public for use of 

infrastructure to the end of the concession period. 

i) Toll collection right is amortized using straight line method on pro-rata basis from the 

date of addition or from the date when the right brought in to service to the expiry of 

concession period. 

j) Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date, with the 

effect of change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. 

k) The carrying value of intangible asset is reviewed for impairment annually or more 

often if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be 

recoverable. 

L 
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2.8 Cash and cash Equivalent 

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with 
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the 
Company's cash management. 

2.9 Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities 

i. Provisions 

a) Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources 
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a 

. provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present 
obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. 

b) If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. 
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

c) Provisions recognised by the Company include provIsions for Maintenance, 
Demobilization, Design Guarantee, Legal Cases, Corporate Social Responsibility 
(CSR), Onerous Contracts and others. 

ii. Onerous contracts 
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b) These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current 
best estimates. 

iii. Contingent liabilities 

a) Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present 
obligations that may but probably will not, require an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or the amount of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. 
When there is possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood 
of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

b) These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best 
estimates. 

iv. Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 

2.10 Revenue Recognition 

i. The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction in accordance with 

Ind AS -ffS'Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

ii. The Consideration received or receivable by the Company is a right to financial asset and an 

intangible asse\. The Company recognizes a financial asset to the extent it has an 

unconditional right to receive cash which is specified determinable amount from or at the 

direction of the grantor for the construction services and the Company recognizes an 

intangible asset to the extent that it receives a sole and exclusive right to charge users of the 

public service. A right to charge users of the public service is not an unconditional right to 

receive cash because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public uses the 

service. 

iii. The Company recognizes contract revenue on the satisfaction of a performance obligation by 

transferring a promised service to the grantor. The Company's performance creates 

lenhances an asset that the grantor controls as the asset is created or enhanced hence, the 

Company. transfers control over time, satisfies a performance obligation over time. 

L 
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iv. Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is 

contractually agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the 

transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties i.e GST and is adjusted for variable considerations. 

v. The nature of Company's contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration 

including escalation and liquidated damages. 

vi. Any subsequent change in the transaction price is then allocated to the performance 

obligations in the contract on the same basis as at contract inception. 

vii. The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a 

significant reversal in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company 

estimates the amount of revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using the 

expected value or most likely amount method whichever is better predict the amount. 

viii. Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognised as 

revenue, or as a reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes. 

ix. The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any 

of the following criteria is met: 

• The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the 

entity's performance as the entity perform. 

• The entity's performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in 

progress) that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or 

• . The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the 

entity and the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed 

to date. 

x. For performance obligation satisfied over time, the revenue recognition is done by measuring 

the progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of 

performance obligation. The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost 

incurred to-date, to the total estimated cost attributable to the performance obligation. 
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xi. Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where 

performance obligation cannot be measured by input method, the output method is applied, 

which faithfully depict the Company's performance towards complete satisfaction of the 

performance obligation. 

xii. Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved 

either to the contract scope or contract price. 

xiii. The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added 

to the existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. 

Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while 

those that are distinct are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if 

additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing 

contract and creation of a new contract if not priced at the standalone selling price. 

xiv. Contract balances 

• Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods 

or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring 

goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before 

payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is 

conditional 

• Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of 

consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before 

payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets 

in section Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement. 

• Contract liabilities: A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services 

to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of 

consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before 

. the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is 

recognised when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). 

Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under 
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the contract 

xv. Revenue from toll collection 

The Company recognizes toil revenue as and when it collects at Transaction Price i.e usage fee. 

Which is exclusive of amounts collected on behalf of third parties. 

xvi. Other income 

• Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established. 

• Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method. 

• Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and 

right to receive the income is established as per terms of contract. 

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets 

i. At each reporting date, the company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may 
be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, 
the company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the 
higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value 
in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not 
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. 
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, 
including impairment on inventories are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 
and the risks specific to the asset. 

iii. For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether 
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the company estimates the asset's or CGU's recoverable 
amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in 
the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognized. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed 
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal 
is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

2.12 Inventories 
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i. Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 
includes cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out 
(FIFO) basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of 
business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the 
sale. 

ii. Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be 
ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter. 

iii. The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction 
work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss 
of the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract 
as at the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off 
valued at cost. 

iv. In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as 
per the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above. 

v. Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase. 

2.13 Borrowing Cost 

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the company incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale 
are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement of 
profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded 
as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. 

2.14 Employee Benefits 

i. Short Term Employee Benefits 

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, and Performance Related 
Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short­
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement of 
profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services. 

ii. Post-employment benefits & other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon International 
Limited, the Holding Company, as the employees are on the deputation from the Holding Company. 

2.15 Leases 

L 
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The company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for 
consideration. 

i. Company as a lessee 

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short­
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease 
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

A. Right-of-use assets 

• The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease 
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are 
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and 
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and 
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
-received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter 
of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold land acquired 
on perpetual lease is not amortized. 

• If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the company at the end of the lease term 
or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using 
the estimated useful life of the asset. 

• The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. 

B. Lease liabilities 

• At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognizes lease liabilities 
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The 

. lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less 
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or 
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease 
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to 
be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if 
the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless 
they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition 
that triggers the payment occurs. 

• In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in 
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the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of 
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease 
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if 
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to 
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to 
purchase the underlying asset. 

• The company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities. 

C. Short term lease and leases of low value assets 

• The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term 
leases contracts including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e., those leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition 
exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. The 
Company further also treats those leases as low value, whose lease term may be over 
one year, but whose effect of non categorizing them as right to use assets and charging 
them over the lease term vis-a-vis accounting them as an expense on a year to year 
basis is not material. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value 
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

• The company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 
116 which came into effect on 1 April 2019, and all the related figures have been 
reclassified/ regrouped to give effect to the requirements of Ind AS 116. 

ii. Company as a lessor 

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 
to ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted 
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of 
profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging 
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the 
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in 
the period in which they are earned. 

2.16 Current income tax 

• Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax 

. regulations. Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income 
for the period and is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current 
income tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates 
"to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is recognized outside profit 
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or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 

. situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and 
establishes provisions where appropriate. 

• Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally 
enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

2.17 Deferred tax 

• Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date. 

• Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to 
apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates 
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 

• Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates 
to items recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are 
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. 

• Deferred income tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 

• The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and 
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be 
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the 
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax 
asset to be recovered. 

2.18 Operating Segment 

Operating segments are reported in the manner consistent with the internal reporting provided by the 
chief operating decision maker (CODM). Company has identified only one reportable segment. 

2.19 Earnings per Share 
In determining basic earnings per share, the company considers the net profit attributable to equity 
shareholders. The number of shares used in computing basic earnings per share is the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period 
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In determining diluted earnings per share, the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and 
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all 
dilutive potential equity shares. 

2.20 Foreign Currencies 

i. Functional and Presentation Currency 

• Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates ("the functional currency"). The financial 
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency 
of the company. 

ii. Transactions and Balances 

• Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange 
rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction. 

• Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional 
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for 
assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost 
are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions. 

• Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date, 
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in 
the statement of profit and loss on net basis. 

2.21 Fair value measurement 

i. The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period. 

ii. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either: 

a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
the principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company. 

iii. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants 
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest. 
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iv. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability 
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to 
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

v. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

vi. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 

a) Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
b) Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
c) Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 

vii. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company' determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re­
assessing categorization 

viii. (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 
the end of each reporting period. 

ix. External valuers are involved for valuation of Significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each 
reporting date, the company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which 
are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the company's accounting policies. 

x. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level 
of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. 

xi. Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are 
given in the relevant notes. 

2.22 Dividend to equity holders 

Annual Dividend distribution to the company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the 
period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as 
liability on approval by the Board of Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend 
distribution, if any, is recognized directly in equity. 

2.23 Financial instruments 
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i. Financial assets 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial 
assets at fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are 
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss. 

b) Subsequent measurement 

• For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

A. Debt instruments at amortised cost 

• A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met: 
a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for 

collecting contractual cash flows, and 
b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 

solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

• After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recogn ised in the profi t or loss. This category generally applies 
to trade and other receivables. 

B. Debt instruments at FVTOCI 

• A 'debt instrument' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling the financial assets, and 

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount 
outstanding. 

• Debt instruments included with in the FVTOCI category are measured initia lly as well as at 
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (Oel). However, the company recognizes interest income, 
impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit 
and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in 
OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst 
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holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income in statement of profit and 
loss using the EIR method. 

C. Debt instruments at FVTPL 

a) FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument. which does not 
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI. is classified as at 
FVTPL. 

b) Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

D. Equity instruments 

• All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity 
instruments which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity 
instruments. the company may make an irrevocable election to present in other 
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The company makes such 
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial 
recognition and is irrevocable. 

• If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI. then all fair value 
changes on the instrument. excluding dividends. are recognized in the OCI. There is no 
recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss. even on sale of 
investment. However. the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

• Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss. 

E. Impairment of financial assets 

• ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e .• 
all cash shortfalls). discounted at the origini'll EIR. 

• In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and 
credit risk exposure: 

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost 
e.g., loans. debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance 

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI 
c. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116 
d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial 

asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115 
e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL 
f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL 
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• The company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance 
on: 

a. Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and 
b. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 

• The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in 
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECls at each 
reporting date, right from its initial recognition. 

• For recogni tion of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the 
company determines that whether there has been a Significant increase in the credit risk 
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECl is used 
to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime 
ECl is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that 
there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity 
reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 

• Lifetime ECl are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over 
the expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECl is a portion of the lifetime ECl 
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 
date 

• ECl impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized 
as incomel expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the 
head 'other expenses' in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation 
fo~ various financial instruments is described below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and 
lease receivables: ECl is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the 
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net 
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the company does not reduce 
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount. 

• loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECl is presented as a provision in 
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

• Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCI, the 
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which 
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the 
asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as 
the 'accumulated impairment amount" 

• The company does not have any purchased or originated cred it-impaired (POCI) financial 
assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. 
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F. Derecaqnitian af financial assets 

a) A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of 
similar financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and 
rewards of the ownership of the asset. 

b) The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received I 
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

ii. Financial liabilities 

a) Initial recognition and measurement 

• All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

• The company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings, 
other financial liabilities etc. 

b} Subsequent measurement 

• The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described 
below: 

a. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 

The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL. 

b. Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

A. Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities 

• After initial recognition, Loans, borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are 
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are 
recognised in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as 
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

B. Derecognition of financial liabilities 
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of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective 
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

iii. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the company are those contracts that require a payment 
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make 
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee 
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the 
higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

iv. Reclassification of financial assets 

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After 
initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and 
financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only 
if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business 
model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in 
the business model occurs when the company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that 
is significant to its operations. If the company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the 
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately 
next reporting period following the change in business model. The company does not restate any 
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest. 

v. Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance 
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously. 

2.24 Non - current asset held for sale 

a) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying 
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly 
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is 
available for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, 
and sale is expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified 
as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. 
Property, plant and equipment, Investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or 
amortized once classified as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are 
presented separately in the balance sheet. 

b) If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale" are no longer met, the 
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be 
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of 

~ 
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i. its carrying amount before the asset was classified as held for sale, adjusted for 
depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been classified as 
held for sale, and 

ii. its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases to be classified as 
held for sale. 

The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and equipment, Investment property 
and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the period when non-current assets 
held for sale criteria are no longer met. 

2.25 Prior Period Adjustment 

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and 
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50% 
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company. 

2.26 Significant accounting estimates and judgments 

• The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated 
by the company and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors 
(including expectations of future events), that the company believes to be reasonable under the 
existing circumstances. 

• The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that 
occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the 
reporting date. Although the company regularly assesses these estimates, actual results could 
differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such estimates were 
reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do 
not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial 
statements in the period in which they become known. 

• The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could 
differ from these estimates. 

i. Allowances for uncollected trade receivables 

• Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables 
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management 
deems not be collectible. 

ii. Contingencies 
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on all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably 
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can 
be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the company is involved. it is 
not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of 
probability. 

iii. Impairment of financial assets 

• The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting 
the inputs ·to the impairment calculation., based on the company's past history, existing market 
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. 

iv. Taxes 

• Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax 
laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business differences 
arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such 
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. 
The company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such 
provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing 
interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority Such 
differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions 
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies. 

• Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management 
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, 
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning 
strategies. 

v. Impairment of non-financial assets 

• Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales 
transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less 
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. 

vi. Non-current asset held for sale 
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vii. Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 

• The compimy cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its 
incremental borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that 
the company would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds 
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic 
environment. 

viii. Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options - company as 
Lessee 

• The company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with 
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or 
any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be 
exercised. 

• The company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The company 
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the 
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an 
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement 
date, the company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in 
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option 
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant 
customisation to the leased asset). 

ix. Revenue recognition 

• The company's revenue recognition policy, which is set out in Note 2.10, is central to how the 
company values the work it has carried out in each financial year. 

• These policies require forecasts to be made of the outcomes of Contracts, which require 
assessments and judgments to be made on changes in scope of work and claims and variations. 

• Estimates are also required with respect to the determination of stage of completion and estimation 
of project completion date: 

• Determination of stage of completion 
• Estimation of project completion date 
• Provisions for foreseeable loses 
• Estimated total revenues and estimated total costs to completion, including claims and 

variations. 
• These are reviewed at each reporting date and adjust to reflect the current best estimates 

Revenue and costs in respect of contracts are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of 
the contract activity at the end of reporting period, measured based on proportion of contract costs 
incurred for work performed to the date relative to the estimated total contract costs, where this would 
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not be representative of stage of completion. Variations in contract work and claims are included to 
the extent that amount can be measured reliably, and receipt is considered probable. When it is 
probable that contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as 
an expense immediately. 
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lRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN ~ U4S400DLZ014G0I272220) 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st !\tar zon 

A. Equity Sbare Capital 

For the year ended 31st Mar 2022 (Rs. in crore) 

Particulars Amount 
Balance as at OJ April, 2020 165.00 

Changes in equity sharo capital during the year -
Balance 8S 11131 March,2021 165.00 

Changes in equity share capital during the yt:ar -
Balance 115 al31st March 2022 165.00 

B. Other Equity 

For the year t'odt:d 31st March 2021 (Jh. in crol'e) 

Olhcr 
Reserves & Surplus Comprehensive 

Income 
Exchange 

Particulars 
Deemed Capital 

differeU(:es on Total 

General Retained 
Contribution ( 

translating Ih, 

Reserves Earnings 
See Note below) 

rimmcial 
stofement of • 
fo rciR;n 

Balance as at I April, 2020 (15.38) - - (15.38) 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors 0.00 - - 0.00 

Balan ce as at I April, 2020 (Restated) · (15.38) . · (15.38) 

Profit for the year (21.38) · - (2U8) 

Other Comprehensive Income 0.00 

RCffiC4lsurmcnt of Defined Benefit Plans - 0.00 

Foreign Exchange Imnslalion difTerence 0.00 

Total Comprehensive Income for Ih e periorJ · (21.3H) · - (21.3') 

Dividl<nds Paid - · 
Dividend Dis!l"llnuion Tax - - - · 
Balance as at MRreh 31, 2021 · (36.76) · · (36.76) 

For the year ended Jist March 2022 (Rs. In I.'rorc) 

O lher 
Ites{'rves & Surplus Comprehensive 

lneom{' 
Exchange 

Particulars differences .n Totul 

General Retuined 
Deemed Capital translating the 

Reserves Enrnings 
Contribution ( financial 

Sec Note below) 
statement of • 
foreign 

Balance a5 at I April, 2021 (36.76) · - (36.76) 

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - · - · 
Balance as lit 1 April, 2021 · (36.76) · . (36.76) 

Profit for the year · (24.62) - (24.62) 

Deemed Capital Con!ribution~ Additions 

Other Comprehensive Income 65.79 65.79 
Remcasunnent of Defined Benefit Plans -
Foreign Exchange tTtlnslation difference · 
Total C omprehensive Incom , Loo;...l.h eriod · (24.62) · (24.62) 

~ 
+. 0 •• ),....- / i 

~ ~ ~ ".IJO\.\~ 
~IlEO"'CW 
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Dividends Paid -
Dividend Distributiun Tllx -
Dalonee liS at Mareh 31, 2022 (61.38) 65.79 

Note: IRCON .International Limited, the Holding Company vide board approval dated August 12,2021 ilas waived interest on ils Loan given to the 
Company for the period October 01, 2019 till March 3 1, 2024. The said waiver has beell considered as Deemed Capital Contribution by the Holding 
Company in accordance with provisions of lnd AS in Slatement of changes in Equity above and Other Equity. (refer nole ll) 

As per our Report of even date attached 

For A.N. Garg & Co, 
Chsrtcred Accounttlnt! 
FRN 004616N A:::::::;:;::::"" 

A.N. Garg 
FCA Partner 
M. No. 083687 
UDiN 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 23-05-22 

and on behalf ofBOllrd of Direct on 

(M~tlkd') 
(Director) (Director) 
(DrN No . 09008553) (DrN No. 851701 3) 

~ (Ab-Jt,'''dl'' ~I 
(ChiefExecutiv.: OOiter) (Chief Finance Officer) ( Company Secretary) 

-
-

4.41 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014G0I272220) 
Notes to Financial Stafements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (Rs. in crore) 

Compute Office Equipmcllts Furniture & Fixtures Total 
rs 

A) Gross Carainl:; Amount {At Cost} 

At 31 March 2020 0.05 0.10 0.15 

Additions 0.13 0.01 0.14 

D isposalsl Adjustments 

Exchange (Ga in) I Loss 

At 31 March 2021 0.05 0.23 0.01 0.29 

Transfer to Right-to-use Assets 

At 1 April 2021 0.05 0.23 0.01 0.29 

Additions om 0.005 0.02 

DisposalslAdj ustmeots 

Exchange (Gain) I Loss 

At 31th Mar 2022 0.06 0.24 0.01 0.3 1 

G} DCll:Tcciation and imnairmcnt 

At 31 March 2020 0.Ql 0.0 1 0.02 

Depreciation charge for the year 0.0 1 0.0 1 0.02 

Impainnent 

Disposals! Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) I Loss 

At 31 March 2021 0.02 0.02 0.04 

At 1 April 2021 0.02 0.02 0.04 

Depreciation charge for the year 0. 01 0.02 0.002 0.04 

Impaimlcnt 

Disposals! Adjustments 

Exchange (Gain) I Loss 

At 31th Mar 2022 0.03 0.04 0.00 0.08 

Cl Net book value 

At 31th Mar 2022 0.03 0.19 0.01 0.23 

At 31 March 2021 0.03 0.21 0.01 0.25 

At 31 March 2020 0.04 0.09 0.13 

Foot Notes:-
i) Depreciation and impainnent on Property. Plant & Equipment for the ycar debited to Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:~ 

Description As At 31st Mar 22 As at 31st Mar 2021 

Depreciation on Tangible Assets 0.04 0,02 

Impainnent Loss . -

Total 0.04 0.02 
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lRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (C IN - U45400DLZ014GOI272220) 
Notes to Finandal Statements fo. the ycar cnded Mar 31 2022 

4 Intangible Assets 

Particulars 

Gross Block 
Opening balance at I April 2020 

Addition during the year 

Capitalisation during Ine year 

Disposals / adjustment during the year # 

Closing balance at 31 March 2021 

Addition duriLlg the }'¢ar 

Capitalisation during the year 

Disposals I adjustment during the year #11 

Closing balance At 31st Mar 2022 

/I Exce:<> provi~on on nccount of EPe Contract for the toll ro3d &. corr(lf;fX"\$inij As""r 
Cr~aled written off 

Amortisation and Impairment 

Opening balance at t Apdt 2020 

Amortisat ion during Ihe year 

Sales I adjustment during the yenr 

Closing balance 01 31 March 2021 

Amortisation during the year 

Sales I adjustment during the year 

Closing balllnce A t 3 1s1 Mar 2022 

Net bool< value 

At3lslMar2022 

At 31 March 2021 

Intangible assets under 
development 

(Toll Road) (Refer Note 
23) 

16.94 

0.01 

1.88 
[5.07 

Intangible Asset 
(Toll Rond) 

(Refer Note 23 ) 

520.76 

1.88 

522.64 

522.64 

25.80 

23.06 

48.86 

23.06 

71.92 

450.72 

473.78 

(Rs. ill crore) 

Otber [ntanglbles 
( Sortwu.c) 

I. flitul/gible Assets (Toll Road) all'o indudes I'flille of fT fllfral"trllclllre fllcfllriillG $ofill'ure es.\·ellfiu/ for the tull rOlld u/ollg with sOllie SIII'I/{ 1II()~ahle 

assets which are blllullcd with tilt! EPC IVqrk.~ Of the Toll Rmu/. The slim e is /lut .'ieparntely qualltifiable II m/ ;s 1111 illtegral pllrt of the Auet. 

v 
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lReON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN • U45400DL2014G0I272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 312022 

5 Non-Current Assets - Other Financial Assets 

Parllculars 

a) Considered Good: Unsecured 

Security Deposits 
- Others 

Total (11) 

b) Cnnsldered Doubtful 
Tolal - Other Fina ncial Assets - Doubt rul (b) 

Grand Total- Other Financial Aiiscis (a+h) 

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar 
2022 

(Its. In crore) 

As at 31st ~br 
2021 
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mCON PH TOLLWAY LIMITED (C IN· U45400DL2014G01272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements forthe year ended Mar 312022 

6 Dererred Tax Assets and Income Tax 
Disclosure pursuant to lnd AS 12 "lncome Taxes" 

(a) The major components ofincomc tax l'Xpense (or the year ended 31 Mar 2022 and 31st March 2021 are: 

S.No. Pa rticulars 

I Profit and Loss Section 

Currenlincome tax: 
Current income tax charge 

Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous year 

Deferred tax: 
Relatinr. to origination and reversal oftempornry differences 

Income lax exnense reported In the Profit nnd Loss section 
2 Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section 

Iucome tmc related to items recognised in OCI during the year: 
Net loss/(gain) on remeasuremcnts of deli lied benefit plans 

Net lossl(~ain) on forei!!n oDeralion translation 

Income tax expensc t'cporfcd in the DCI seelion 

(Rs. in crore) 
For the Year ended 

31 March 2011 31 March lOll 

-
-

- 8.29 

- 8.19 

- -
-

- -

(b) Reconciliation or tax expense and the llccounting profit multiplied by Tndia's domcstic tax rate for 31th Mar 22 and 31st I\larch 21 

IRs. in crore 

S.Ne. Particulars 
For the Year ended 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
I Accounting profit before income tllX (24.63) (13.09) 

2 Corporate lax rate as per Income tal( Act. 196 ] 2(,% 26% 

3 Tax on Accounting profit (3) .. (i)· (2) -
4 Effect ofTox Adjustmell1.S 

(i) Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years - -
(ii) Utilisation of previously unrccognisedtax losses -
(iii) Imract of Rate Difference -
(iv) Tax on Income exempt from 13X - -
(,) Non·deductible eX[len~e~ for tM numo~cs: 

--Other country additional taJ( -
·Other non.cleductible exrenses -

(vi) Tax effect of various other items - 8.29 
5 lncome til!( expellse reported in the Statement or Profit and - 8,29 

6 Effective Tax Rate 

(c) Components of deren'ed tax assd .~ and (liabilities) I'ecognised in the Balance Sheet and Statement ofPt'ofit or Loss 
(Its In crore) 

Balance shrrt Statement of profit or loss 

S,No. Particulars 

31 ,\lArch 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 Mardi 2021 

I Property, Plant & Equipment (including intangible): Difference in 
(66. 87) (56.12) 10.75 16.28 

b,ook depreciat10n tlnd income tax depreciation "" 

2 Provisions 6.40 0.54 (5.86) (0.54) 

3 Others! Business Loss 52.99 48.10 (4.89) (1.45) 

4 Items disallowed uls 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 -
5 lmpaci of expenditure charged to the statemenf of profit and loss in 

lhe cun'ent year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on -
payment basis 

6 Fair valuation of financial instruments -
7 Unulilised gain/loss on FVTOCi equity securities and FVTPL 

Mutual funds - -

Net deferred tax assct:'/(liabilities) (7.48) (7.48) (0.00) 8.29 

NI. Deferred Tox Assets arising on account of Business losses has been restricted to the Dcftlm::d Tax LiubililY Prising from PPE and intDngible Assets as a matter of 
conservatism. Deferred Tax asset ofRs 2.39 Crare:; has nol been recognisl:d as II mailer of pn1dell~. in Ilne with Accounting policy 2.17 
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(d) Reflected in the balance sheet 3S follows: 
(lb. III c:rore 

S.No. Particulars 31 March 2022 31l\1arch 2021 

I Dererred lax assets 59.39 48.64 

2 Deferred lax liability (66.87) (56.12) 

Dererred Tax Assel/(Liabilitlts) (Nel (7.48 (7.4H) 
... 

Note: Deferred lax. assets and deferreti I<lX hablill!es have been off sci as they relate to the same govemmg laws. 

(e) Reconciliation of deferred tax (Iiabilifies)/assets: 

As at 31th Mar 2022 .J!h.ln crore) 
Net balance Recognised In 

Recognised in 
Net balnnc:c 

S.Na. Particulars As al 1st April statemellt of 
OCI 

As at 31th Mar 
2021 profit and lns~ 2022 

I Property. Plam & Equipment ( including intangible): Difference in 
(56.1 2) 10.75 

book depreciation and income lax depreciation (66.87) 

2 ProvIsions 0.54 (5.86) 6.40 

3 Others! Busi ness Loss 48.10 (4.89) 52.99 

4 Items disallowed U/S 43B ofIneomc Tax. Act, 1961 - - -
5 Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss in 

the current year and earlier years but allowable for tax purposes on -
payment basis -

6 Fair v'lluation of financial instnmlents - - -
7 Unutiliscd gainlloss on FVTOCI equity sccurilies and FVTPL -Mutual funds -

Net derer~d (ax assets/(lialJllities) (7.48) (0.00) (7.48) 

As at 31st Mnch 21 (Rs. in crore) 

Net balance Il.eeognlsed in Recognised i" Net balance 

As 111 1st April sla tcment of OCI As at 31st 
S.No. Purticulars 2020 profit and loss March 2021 

I Propel1y. rlant & Equipment (including il\tilngible): DifTerence in 

book dcprcciahon and meomc lax dcpreclation (39.84) 16.28 
(56.12) 

2 Provisions (0,54) - 0,54 

J Others! Business Loss 40.65 (7.45) - 48.10 

4 Hems disallowed U/S 438 of lncome Tax Act, 1961 - -
5 Impact of expenditure charged to the statem~nt of profit and loss in 

Ihe CUITent year and curlier years bul allowable for tax purposes on - - -
payment basis , Pair valuation of financial instruments - - -

7 Unulili,;ed gam! lo,;s on FVTOCI equity 5ccuritics and FVTPL - - -
Mutual fWlds -
Net deferred lax asselsl(liabilltll$} 0.81 8.29 - 7.4R) 
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7.1 Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 
Trade Receivables which have significant increase In credit risk 
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts) 
Unsecured. considered good 
Traue Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk 
Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

Total 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

Particulars 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables ~ considered good 
(il) Undisputed Trade Receivables whidl have signifICant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables credit impaired 

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 
(Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credil impaired 

Particulars 

(I) Undisputed Trade receivables considered good 
(II) Undisputed Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables credit impaired 
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 
(Iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have signifICant increase in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit~ 

---

~ ~ 

Unbillcd Not Due 

UnbiUed Not Due 

(R.s. in crare) (Rs.. in crare) 

As at 31st As at 31.st Mar 
Mar 2022 2021 

1.11 12.38 

1.11 12.38 

Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2022 from the due date of 
payment Total 

Less than 6 6 months-1 More than 3 (Rs. in Craro) 
months year 1-2 years 2-3 years years 

1.11 1.11 

Outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2021 from the due date of 
payment 

Total 

Less than 6 6 months -1 More than 3 (Rs. in Crore) 
months year 1·2 years 2·3 years years 

6.01 6.37 12.38 

-
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014G0I272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

7.2 Current Fina ncial Assets - Cash and Cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Balances with banks: 
- On currellt accounts" 
- Flexi Accounts" 
- Deposits with original nlllturily of less than 3 months (i)&(iii) 

(Rs. in crore) (Rs. In nore) 

As al31st Mar 2022 
As al3lSIl\br 

2021 

1.60 2.13 
1.49 9.17 

3.09 11.30 

"Ou,l ohotnl balance ofRs 3.09 Crores, Rs 1.50 Crores pertain 10 ESCROW NC which are eannarked fund as per concession agreement entered 
wilhNHA I 

7.3 Current Financial Assets - Loans (Rs. in crore) 

Partlculan As at 31st Mar 2022 

(i) Others: 
Staff Loans & Advances 

Total 

• Dctails of amount due from Directors: 

Particulars As 1113 Jst Mar 2012 

Amount duc from directors included in siaIT loan5 and advances -
Tolal -

(Rs. in crore) 

As at 31st Mar 
2021 

0.08 

0.08 

(Rs. In crore 

As a t 31st Mar 

2021 

-
-
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN M U45400DLZOI4GOI272220) 
Notes to Financial Statemenfll for the year ended Mar 312022 

7.4 Current ASJicts MOther Finandal Auets 

Parliculllr5 

Considered Good: Unsecured 

Security Deposits 

- Govenunent Del'l3nments 
- Olhers 

Earnest Moncy Deposit 
Interest Accrued on : 

- Deposits with Banks 

Contract Asset: 

- Billable: Revenue I Receivable not due {refer foot note (i) & Note 33 (B) (ii) 

- Retention Moncy with Client (Refcr Note 33 (8) (ii» 

Claims Rccovcl'llblc from Clients (Refer Note 38 (c) 

Others {Refer note 38 (d) 

Total - Other Financial Assets M Good 

Consld er£'tI Oouhtful : Un ~{'eur{'d 

Total 

(Rs. In crore) 

As ailist 
Mar 2022 

0.03 

0.004 

0.19 

21.25 

0.57 

22.04 

22.04 

(Rs. In crore) 

As at 31s1 
Mar 2021 

0.Q3 

0.01 

0.83 

0.96 

2.36 

4.19 

4.19 

(j) BjlJah/e ,'('I'e,we oj R.f 0./9 Crnrl't reflre,fellls 1'0/111' o/l1'ork dOl/e wh ich recl'il'abtejmm MIS Coral A.Hociales. bill hilled 10 Cljent iIIlhe /Iexl 

fin al/cial rear 
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lRCON PH TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014G0l272220) 

Notes to Finantlnl Statements fo.tbe year ended Mar 31 2022 

8 Current Assets - Current Tax Assets (Net) 

Particulars 

Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 

Current tax Assets (Net) 

(Rs. In crnre) 

As lit 31st MarZOZl 

7.03 

7.03 

(Rs. in crore) 

Asat31stMarlOZI 

6.96 

6,96 
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meON pn TOLLWAY L1MITI<;D (C]N - U45400DL2014G0I272Z20) 
Notes to Financini Statement's for the year ended Mar JI 2022 

9 Other Currenl Assets 

Particulars 

Considered Good: Unsecured 
Advances Other than Capital Advances 

- Goods & Services Tax 
Prepaid Ex.penses 
Considered Doubtful: Unsecured 

Total 

(Rs. In .:rore) 

As at 315t Mllr 
2022 

0.47 
0.09 

0.56 

(Rs. In crore) 

As at 31st Mar 2021 

0.31 
0.09 

0.40 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL20 I 4GQ(272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the y('ar ended Mar 31 2022 

10 Equity Share capital 

Particulars 

Authorised share capital 
17,50,00,000 (Nos) Equity shares of Rs.1 0 each 

(Rs. ill crore) 

Asat31stMar Asat3htMar 
2022 2021 

(17,50,00,000 (Nos) Equity shares of Rs.IO each as at 30th June 175.00 175.00 
175.00 175.00 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up Capitnl 
16,50,00,000 (Nos) Equity shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid 
(16,50,00,000 (Nos) Equily shares of Rs 10 each-fully paid as at 165.00 165.00 

165.00 165.00 

Promoler's shareholding 
Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of tho period / year 

S.No Promoter Name" 
No. of s hares 

As at March 31, 2022 
1 Ircon International Limited- Holding 165,000,000 

Company ( IRCON) 

2 

Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of tho period / year 

S.No Promotor Name* 
No. of shares 

As at March 31, 2021 1 
Ircon International Limited- Holding 

165,000.000 
Company ( IRCON) 

2 

Details of shareholders holding more than ~% shares ill the Compa nl' 

Na me of the shareholder 

lreon Intermnional Limiecd- Holding 
Company ( IRCON) 

As at 31st Mal' 2022 

No. of Share % hold ing in (he 
class 

165,000,000 100.00% 

As at 31st Mnr 2021 

No. of Share % hOlding in the 
t:!ass 

165,000.000 100.000/. 

(a) Detlllls ofsilllrehnTders holding more fhm) 5"(11 shares in the Commmv 

As at 31st !\'1ar 2022 Asat31stMn r2021 
Name of the sharehuld er -----''''''-''''-'-''~o/.~.~J~''~Jd~;~n~~~I',..,,''~''~--''''-'"-''''"-''~O/'~.~h~o7Id~;~'~,~;,~, -

No. of Share No. of Share 

lreon Internat ional Limited- Holding 
Company ( IRCON) 

165.000,000 

class the class 

I OO.O~ . 165,000,000 100.00% 

% change 
during the 

period I year 

% of total shares 

100.00% NA 

% change 
during the 

porlod I year 

% of total shares 

100.00,"- NA 

As at 31st March 2020 

No. of Shllre 

165,000,000 

.;" holding in the 
class 

100.00% 

(b) Reconciliation of't he number of equity shu res and share capital outstnmllng III the beginning and at the end of'thc ycar 

Particulars 
As III 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mur 2021 

No of shares Ih in crore No of sh ares Its in crore 

Issued/Subscribed and Paid up equity 

Capital outst.mding at the beginning of , 65,000,000 16500 I 65,OOO,0Q(} 165.00 
the year 

Add: Shares Issued dunng the year 

Less: Shares Buy Back dunng the year - - -
Issued/Subscribed lind Paid up equity 

16S,O{}O,000 165,00 165,000,000 165.00 
Capital oulsl~t Ihe end of the yell.r 

~~ ~.-~r· ~ j 
~ ~~~ ~ ~ ~ED"rw \ 
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IReON PH TOLLWAY LIMITED (eIN· U45400DLZOI4GOI272220) 
Notes 10 Financial Statements for the year ('nded Mar 31 2022 

lJ Other Equity (In Rs) 

Particulars 

Relained Earnings 

General Reserve 

Capital Redemption Reserve 

Deemed Capital Contribution (Refer note 12.1 (b)) and 

Note (b) below) 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total 

i) Movement as ocr below: 

(a) Retained Earnings 

Opening Balance 

Transfer from surplus m statement of profit and loss 

Closing Balance 

(b) Deemed Capitlll Contrib ution 

(c.) Gencrailleserve 

Opening and Closing 13alance 

(d) Other Comprehensive Income 

Opening and Closing Balance 

G l'and Total (a+b+e+d) 

ii) Nature and Purpose or Other Rt.~erves : 

(II) Retained Earnings 

As at 31st !\Iur 2022 

(613,887,808) 

657,883,776 

43,995,968 

(367,654,103) 

(246,233.105) 

(613,887,808) 

657,883,77 6 

43,995,968 

Retained Earnings represents lhe tlndistributed profits of the Company. 

(b) Deemed Ca pital Conlribution 

(R~. in crorc) (lb. In crore) 

As a' 31st Mar 2022 As al3lst March 2021 

(61.38) (36.76) 

65. 79 

4.41 

(36.76) 
(24 .• 2) 

(61.38) 

65.79 

4.41 

(36.76) 

(15.38) 
(2 \.38) 

(36.76l 

(36.76) 

lRCON lmcmationai Limited, the Holdillg Company vide board approval d:lted Augusl 12,2021 has waivcd intercst on ilS Loan given 10 

the Company for the perioLl Oclobcr 0 1,20 19 till March 31 . 2024, The saiLl waiver has bC(:n considercd as Dccmcd Capi tal Contribution by 

the Holding Company in 3cconlance with provisions of Ind AS in SlatL'f11enl of changCl> in Equity alld Olher Equi ty. 

(c) General Reserve 

Gencral Reserve reprcscnl!l the statutory reserves, this is in accordance >,\ illi Corpornle Law wherein a portion of prolit is apportioned to 

General Reserve. Under Companies Act, 20 13, the tmnsfc r of any amount to Gencral Reserve IS at the discretion of the Company. 

(d) hems of Other Comprehensive Income 

Olher Comprehensive Income represenls bal3uce arising on account of exchange difference on translation of forci gn operations. 
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IRCON PD TOLLWAY LIMITED (C1N ~ U45400DL2014G01272220) 
Notes to rlo.nclal Statements for the year endell Mar 312022 

12 Non·Curn:nt Liabilities - Finandaillabiliries 

12.1 
Non·Cu~nf Financial Liabilit1~· Borrowings 

ParticulArs 

Un5ecured: 
(a) Loan from Holding Company (lrcon inlemalionallimlted) 
(Refer Note below & Nott; 14) 

Toll'll 

Notes :-

(Rs. in crore) (RJ. in crore) 

AS Ilt 31st Mar 1022 As lit 31st Mar 2021 

209.78 297.04 

209.78 297.04 

(a) Details ofTemlS of repayments for the other short (emlS borrowings :md details in respect of other unsecurecllong term borrowings:-

Particulars and terms of Loan As at 31st Mar 2022 Asat3Istl\1arZ021 

IRCON International Limited Unecured Loan (Refer note b below) 240.66 336.00 
Less: CuITCflI Maturities (Amount re- payable in next financial year ) Shown under - current 

Financial Liabilities- borroWings Note 14 
30.88 38.96 

Amount Shown under Non-Cnrrenl Financia l Liabili ties-Borrowings 209.78 297.04 

(b) 1RCON International Limited, the Ho lding Co mpany vide board :Jppl'Oval dated Au~ust 12, 202 1 has waived interest on its Loan for the period 
October 01, 20 19 till MarcIl 3 t, 2024. The Company has mea~ured f<lir val ue of the loan :Jnd tile difference between fair value and the loan 
amount has been presented as "Deemed C<lpi tal Contribution" lmder Other Equity in accordance with provisions of Ind AS . (refer note! 1) 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014GOI272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

13 Provisions 

Particulars 

Provision for Employee Benefits 
Other Provisions 
Total 

Current 
Non Current 

13.1 Other Provisions: 

Particulars 

As at 31~March-Z020 

Current 
Non Current 

Provision made dming tllC year 
less: Utilization during the year 

Less: Write Back during the year 
(Excbange Gain) I Loss 

Unwinding of discount 

As at 31-March-2021 

Cmrent 
Non Current 

Provision made dUring the year 
Less: Utilization during the year 
Less: Write Back during the year'''' 
(Exchange Gain) I Loss 

Unwinding of discount 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

Clinent 
Non Current 

Foot Note 

13. 1 

Maintenance 

1776 

17.76 

17.76 
21.44 

1.08 

40.28 

40.28 

As at 31st Mar 2022 

40.28 

40.28 

40.28 

Other Expenses 

15.67 
15.67 

0.00 

2.93 
(0.60) 

(18.00) 

0.00 

(Rs:. in crare) 

As lit 31st Mar 2021 

17.76 

17.76 

17.76 

Total 

15.67 
15.67 
0.00 

20.69 
(0.60) 

(18.00) 
0.00 

0.00 

17.76 

17.76 
21.44 

1.08 

40.28 

40.28 
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Notes to Financial Statements for Ihc yc!\r ended Mllr 31 2022 

14 Currenl Liabilities - Financial Liabilities 

Current Financial Lillbiliti(!5 - Borrowin~~ 

Particulars 

Other Financial Liabilities~ Current Maluri tes of 
Long term borrowings ( refer note 12.1)- Unsecured 

Total 

14.1 Current Financial Liabilities - Trade ['ayaoles 

Particlliars 

(A) Micro. Small & Medium Enterprises (Refer Note 
35) 
(B) Other than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises 

(i) Contractor & Suppliers 

(ii) Related Parties (Refer Notc 28) 

Total 

Notes: 

(Rs. in 
erart) 

As at 31st 
Mar 2022 

30.88 

30.88 

(Rs. in crore) 
As al315t 
Mil[ 2022 

1.71 
17.94 

19.65 

a) Disclosures liS required under Companies Act. 2013 I ~icro, Small and Medium Emerprises Development Ael,2006 

(MSMED) arc provided in Note 35.S 
b) Terms and Conditions and o ther balances with related parties are disc losed in Note 28 

Trade payables Ageing Schedule 

Particulars Un billed Notdue Oulatandlng for the year ended Mi'lrch 31, 2022 
from the due date of payment 

L.ess than 1 1-2 years More than 
year 3 years 

Tolal oulSlaodin!J aues 01 micro enterpOses end smal enterprises 9.86 9.79 

Total outstanding duos 01 cre<litors oltterlhuJ'l micro eoterpl1ses 
1100 smal en\erprtses 
Disputed dues of micro en terprises and small enlerprises 

DIsputed dues of creditors Olhsr than micro enterprises i'lOO 
sm<l~ ent """ 
Particulars UnbJlled Notdue Outstanding for Ihe year ended March 31, 2021 

frol1\ the due date of pi'lymont 

L.ess Ihan 1 1-2 years More than 
ycar :3 years 

Tota! outstaod in~ dues 01 micro enterJlrIses and small . 
enterprises 

Totat outstanding clues o' creditors other then micro enterprises 
and small ent~e. 

15.06 

DisplJt'ild cluesof miCfl) enterprises and sma. enlMlrises 

Disputed lfues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 
smailanterprises 

14.2 Current Liabilities - Other Finandnl Llllbllities 

ParticularS 
As at 31st 
MDr 2022 

Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 6.59 

Amount Payable to Clien t ( NHAI) on account Fast 

T'g 0.003 
Other Payabics (including StafTPayublc) 0.65 
Total 7.24 

Rsin 

Crores 

Total 

19.65 

· 
· 

Rs In 

Crores 

Total 

15.06 

· 
· 

(Rs. in 
crare) 

As at 31st 
Mar 2021 

38.96 

38.96 

ills. In 
As at 31st 
Mar2021 

0.14 

14.92 

15.06 

As at 31st 
Mar 2021 

0.60 

0.31 
3.85 

4.76 
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meON PH TOLLWAY LIMlTED (ern. U4S4000L10I4G0I272220) 
NOles to flnandal Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

15 Otber Current Liabililies 

Particuhlrs 

0) OtherS 
Statutory dues 

Total 

(Rs. in crore) (Rs. In c:rore) 

As al31s1 Mar 2021 As at 31st Mar 2021 

0.06 0.04 

0.06 0.04 

(Note · Sbltutory dues Includes liability for Goods lind Service Tllx (CST). TDS, Provident Fund and other statutory dues) 
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lRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CI N · U45400DL2014G0I272220) 
Notes to Financinl Statements for the yeRr ended Mar 3] 2022 

16 Revenue from Operations 

Construction COlltract revenue under SCA (Refer Note 23) 
Construction 'Contract revenue ·Change ofScopc (Refer Note 23) 
Revenue from Toll Operations (Refer Note 23 & )3) 
Other Operating Revenue 

Total 

17 Orher Income 

Interest Income: 
Bank Interest Gross 
less:· Interest Pnssed to Clients 

Other~ : 

Miscellaneous Income 

Total 

(Rs. In erore) 

For the year ended 31st MDr 2022 

7.86 
47.1 8 

0.43 

55.46 

For tbe year elided 31st Mar 2022 

0.23 0.23 

(It'!. In crore) 

For the year ended 31st l\1Ar 
2021 

0.01 
11.66 
43.19 

54.86 

Fo.· the year ended 31st Mar 

2021 

0.]0 0.30 

0.23 ___ -'--_ 0.30 

0.09 0.14 

0.32 0.44 
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IS 

lRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (C IN - U45400DL2014 G 01272220) 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

Project and Other Expenses 

Project E-xpenscs 

Particulars 

Work Expenses 
Toll Road Operation Ex penses 

Work Sub Contract (Change of Scope) 
Inspection, Oeo Technical Investigation & Survey Exp. Etc. 
Repairs and Maintenance of Machinery 

Operation and Maintenance - Toll Road 
Rent - Non-residential (Refer Note 34) 
Rates and Taxes 
Vehicle Operation and Maintenance 

Power, Electricity and Water charges 
Insurance 
Travelling & conveyance 
Printing & stationery 

Postage, telephone & telex 
Legal & Professional charges 
Write off - Inlangible assets under development 

Auditors remuneratIOn (Refer Note Below) 
Advertisement & publicity 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Provisions (Addition - Write off) (Refer Note 13) 

Provisions Utilised (Refer Note 13) 

Total 

Note ~ Payment to Statutory Auditors: 

Particulars 

(a) Audit Fee - current year 

(b) Tax Audit Fees - current year 
(c) Fee for Qual1erly Limited Review 

(d) Certification Fees 
(e) Travelling & o ut of poekcl expenses: 

- Travelling Expenses 

Ou t of Pocket Expenses 

Total 

For the year ended 
31st Mar 2022 

-
5.60 
7.S6 
0.73 

0.02 
1.24 
0.03 
-

0. 16 

0.22 
0.91 
0.04 
0.01 

0.19 
-
-
-

0.03 
2 1.44 

-
38.48 

For the year ended 
31st Mar 2022 

0.011 

0.003 
0.005 

0.D2 

For Ihe year ended 
31st Mar 2021 

0.60 
S.D2 

11.66 
0.60 

0.14 
0.78 
0.04 
0.01 

-
1.66 
1.76 
0.01 
0.01 

0.10 
0.11 

15.07 
-
-

0.04 
2.69 

(0.60) 

42.70 

For the year ended 
31st Mar 2021 

0 .009 
0.003 
0.004 

0.00 

0.02 

(Rs. in crore) 

Other Expenses 
For the year For the year 

cnded 31st Mar cnded 31st Mar 
2022 2021 

- -

- -
- -
- -
- -

- -
- -
- -
-
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -
- -

O.DIS 0.0 18 
0.005 0. 12 

-
- -
- -

0.02 0.1 4 
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fRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U4S400DL2014GOIl72220) 
Notes to Fillancial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

19 Enlployee Remuneration and Benefits (Refer Note 26) (Rs. In crore) 

Fool 
For the year ended 31st Mar 2U22 For theyear ended 31st Mar 2021 

Particulars 
Note Project Other Projed 

Total 
Expenses ExpenseJ Expenses 

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1.98 1.98 2.13 
Contribution to Provident and Olber Funds 0.11 - 0.11 0.13 
Foreign Service Contribution - - -
Retirement Benefils 0.111 0.111 0.20 
StaffWdfare . -

Total 2.27 . 2.27 2.46 

{Refu note 28 for details of rem un era lion to Directors and Kt'y Management I~ersonncl) 

20 Finance Costs 

Particulars 
Foot 
Note 

Interest Expense (Refer note no. 38(g» 
Less:- Interest earned on Loan funds 

Olher Borrowing Cost 

- Dank Guarantee & Other Chllrges 

Unwinding of Discount on ProvisIons 

Total 

Poot Notes:-

o 

21 Depredation, Amortisation and Impairment 

l)arllcuian 

Depreciation of Proper1y. Plant and equipment 
Depreciation of Right to Usc - Lcfl~ Assets 
Amortization of intangible As~ets 

Depreciation oflnvcstmcnt Property 

Total 

FOI·the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

15.44 

- 15.44 

0.01 

1.08 

16.5J 

For the year ended 31st 
Mar 2022 

0.04 

23. 06 
. 

23.10 

(Rs. in 
crore) 

For the yetlr ended 31st 
Mur2021 

0.0 1 

-

0.01 

(Rs. in 
crorc) 

For the year ended 31st 
!\1llr20ZI 

0.02 
-

23.0(j 

23.08 

Other 
EX1CI1Se8 

Total 

- 2.13 
- 0.13 

- -
- 0.20 

- . 
- 2.46 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LI MITED (eiN - U45400DL2fH4G0I272220) 
Notes to Financial Stat~menls for tlt~ yur ended Mar 312022 

Note:~22 

A. Fair Value M easurements 
(i) Category wise classification of F(nanciallnstrumen ts 

Financial assets and financial Liabili ties art measured at fair value in these financi aL statement and are grouped into three levels ofa fair value hierarchy. The three Levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to 
the measurement, as follo ws: 

Levell: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2: fnputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 
level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

n)The canying values and fa ir values of financi;JI instruments by categories as at 31 st March 2022 Bre as follo ws: • 

Particu.lars 

Fina ncial Assets a t Fair Value Through Profit and Loss (, FVfPL') 
Investment in Mutual Funds 
Total 
Financia l Assets at Amflrtized Cost 
(i) Investments 
(ii) Loans 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 

Total 

Particulars 

Financial Liabilities al Amortized Cost 
(i) Borrowings 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilit ies 

Total 

b) The carrying values and fa ir values of fi nancial insUl1ments by categories as al 31th March 2021 are as follows: -

Particulars 

Financial Assets at Fair Value Tbrough Pront and Loss (,FVfPL') 
Investment in Mutual Funds 

Total 

\ ~ 

(Rs. in crot el 
Fair Value 

Carrvina Value Levell Level 2 Level 3 

22,04 

22.04 

(Rs, in crore 
Fair Value 

Carrvin Value Lc\'ell Level 2 LC\'cI3 

240.66 
7.24 

247.89 

iRs. In cro re 
Fair Value 

Carn'ine Value Levell Le"eI2 Level 3 

+-
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Financial Assets .t Amortiz~ Cost 
(i) lnvcstments 
(ii) Loans 
(iii) Other Financial Assets 

Total 

0.08 
4.20 

ill 

1'\.3. '" ";1 ur~, 

Partic:ulars 
F.air Value 

Car 'in Value Levell Level 2 Level 3 

Financial LlabilitiCi at Amortized Cost 
(i) Borrowings 336.00 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 4.76 

Total 340.76 

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, bank ovel'drnfts and other current financial liabilities approximate their eanying amounts largdy due to the shorHerm maturities of these 
instruments. 

The faif values of the fmaneial assets and tinancialliabilities is included at me amount at which the instrumem could be exchanged in i! current transaction between willing parties. Methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair 
values are consistent with those used for the financial ye.1r 2020-21. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values 

i) The canying amount of financial assets and financial liabili tics measured at amoni7..ed cost in these financial statements are at reasonable approximation of their fair values since the Company does not anticipate that the 
carrying amounts would be significantly ditTcn.:nl from the values that would eventually be received or sclltL'(\. 
ii) The canying amounts of current financial assets and current financial liabi lities approximate their fair value main ly due to their short term nature . 

• DuriDg !he fiDancla1 year 2021-22 and 2020-21 , thL're were no transfers between l..cvel I, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. 

B. Financial Risk l\bnagement 

T hc Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The Company's principal financial assets include loans to related panics, trade and other receivables, and cash and short-leon 
deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Company's activities expose it to some of the financial ris"~: mm"ket risk. credit risk and liquidity risk. 

a) Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk th31 the roir value of future cash flows of a fi nancial insmlments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises Foreign currency risk and Interest rate risk. Financial 
instruments anected by market risk includes borrowings, trade receivab!c:s, trade payable and other non derivative financial instruments. 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk 

The company operates domestically and is exposed to insignificant foreign currency risk (since receipts & payments are received in [ndian Rupees) . 
As of Mar 3 1, 2022 and Mar 31,2021, e .... ery 1% increase or decrease of the respective foreign currency would impact our profit before tax by approximately Rs. N[L and Rs. NIL respectively. 

(ii) Interest R ate Risk 
lnterest rate risk is the risk that the rair value of future cash flows of a financi al instruments will fluctu3!e because of chang!.. in mme! interest rate. The company manages its interest risk in accordance with the companies 
policies and risk objective. Financial inSlTUmcnts aiTccted by interest rate risk includes borrowings and deposits with banks. lnlcrest rate risk on these financial instruments are very low as interest rate is fIXed for the period of 
financial instruments. Also, the Company's interest risk on 103[15 borrowings is insignificant as the interest rale linked to the bank base rate changes marginally. 

"\' ~ ~ 
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b) Credit Risk 
The Company's customer profile include Government Ministries, Public Sector Enterprises, Government Highway Authorities and individual Toll users. Accordingly, the Company's customer credit risk is low. The Company's 
average project execution cycle is around 24 to 36 months. General payment terms include mobilisation advance, Viabil ity Gap Funding, ["(l(lnthly progress payments, payments for change of scope work with a credit period ranging 

from 45 to 60 days and cenain retention money to he released at the end of the project. In some cases retentions are substituted with bank I corporate guarantees. The Company has a detailed review mechanism of overdue customer 
receivables at \JOOUS levcls within organisation to ensure proper attention ~nd focus for real isation. Other than these, the Company's customers arc individual users afthe Toll Road, where credit risk is insignifcant. 

Tntde and other reeeiyable 
The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry arid country in which the CUStomer 

opcrdtes, also has an influcnce on credit risk assessment. 

E:qJosure to Credit Risk 
(Rs, l.!l crore) 

Particulars As at 31st Mn 2022 As at 31st 

Mar 2021 
Financial Assets (or which allowance is measured using LI (etime Expected Credit Losses (LECL) 

Non Current Investments 

Non Current Loans 

lLJ 
Other Non Current Financial Assets 

Current Investments 

Cash and Cash Equivalcnts 3.09 

Other Bank Balances 

Current Loans 

00'1 Other Current Financial Assets 21.86 2.41 

Fin:tnciaI Assets (or which sllowance is measured using Simplified Approach 

Trade Receivables l.ll ~ Contract Asscts O~~ ._ 1.79 

Summary of ch:;r;nge in loss allowances measured using Simplified Ipproach 

Particulars As It 31st Mar 2022 Asat31stMar2021 

O pening Allowances 

Provided during the year 

Ulilization during the year 

Amount written--off 

Closing Allowances 

During the year, the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs. NIL (31 March. 2021 : Rs. NIL ). 

Summary of change in loss allowances measured using Lifetime Expcdcd Credit Losses (LECL) approach 

-\' ~./ 
~ 
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Particulars As at31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021 
Opening Allowances · · 
Provided during the year · 
Utilization during the year · 
Amount written-off · · 
(Exchange Gain) I Loss · 
Closing Allowances · · 

No significant changes in estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the reporting period. During the year, the Company has recognised loss allowance ofRs. NIL (31 March, 2021 : Rs. NIL). 

c) Liquidity risk 

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines. The Finance department regularly monitors the posi tion of Cash and Cash 

Equivalents vis-a-vis projections. Assessment of maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilitiC'S and maintenance of Balance Shcci liquidity ralios arc considered while revie\l.i..Dg the liquidity position. 

The senior Management of the Company oversees its investment strategy and achieve its investment objectives. The Company typically invf."s1S in Bank Flexi accounts and Fixed deposits with Government Banks. The primary 

objective of minimising the potential risk of principal loss . 

The table below provides details regarding the significant financial habilitics as at 31st Mar 2022 and 31st Ma..- 2021 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade payables 
Olher financia l liabili ties 

Particulars 

Bon·owings 

Trude payables 
Othcr financi alliabilirics 

d) Excessive risk concentration 

tess than] Year 
lO.88 
19.65 
7.24 

Less than 1 Year 

15.06 
4.76 

(Rs. in crore) 

As on 31st Mar 2022 

1-2 years 2 Years and above 
29 .44 180.34 

(Rs. in crorc) 

As on 3Ist Mar 2021 
1-2 years 2 Years and above 

176.82 182.58 

Concentrat ions arise when a number ofcounterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or heve economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations 

to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrat ions indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting II particular industry. 

\ ' ~ qv--
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C. Capital Management 
The objective of the Company is to manage its capital in a manner to ensure 2nd safeguard their ability to continue as a going conccm so thaI company can continue to provide maximum returns to share holders and benefit to other 
stakeholders. Further, company manages its capital structure to make adjustmcnts in the light of changes in economic conditions and requirements of the financial covenants. 

Company has taken a terro loan during the FY 2021-22 ofRs NIL (Cumulative till FY 2021-22 Rs 291 ,00,00,000) from its holding company to fi nance its project. 

....... ". "" .... . .... " .... - \"~' ... ~.~.~ 
Particulars As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021 
Borrowings (Note No. 12. 1 & 14.2) 240.66 336.00 
Lonf Term Debt 240.66 336.00 
Equity (Note No.1 0) 165.00 165.00 

Other Equity (Note No. 11 ) 4.41 (36.76 

Total Equity 169.-11 128.24 

Dcbt EQuity Ratio 1.42 2.62 

~ ~ 
~ 
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meON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (ClN - U45400DL2014G01272220) 
Notes to Fimlncial Statements for the year cnded Mar 31 2022 

Note:~ 23 Service Concession Arrangements (SeA) to Iud AS-115-"Rcvcnue from Contract with customers" 

Public-ta-private service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"· Service Concession Arrangements to 
Ind AS-1l5-"Revenue from Contract with customers" , This SeA is falling within this appendix's scope as both the conditions set out 
below are met: 

a) The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator must provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide them, 
and at what price; and 

b) The grantor controls- through ownersh ip, beneficial entitlement, or othclwise- any significant residual interest in the infrastructure 
at the end of the tenn o r the arrangement. 

An intangible asset is recognized to the extent that the operator receives the right to charge users or the public service. provided that 
these charges are conditional on the degree to which the service is used. 

These intangible assets are initially recognized at cost, which is underst ood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct 

costs directly attributable to tbe operation. They are then amortized over the term of the concession, 

Ircon PB Tollway Limited (IPBTL) (the operator) has entered into a service concession arrangement with National Highway Authority 
of India (NHAf) dated 7th November 2014 in lenns of which NHAJ (the grantor) has authorized the company to develop, finance, 

design, engineer, procure, construct , operate and maintain the Project of four laning of Bikaner Palaudi Section and to exercise andlor 
enjoy the rights, powers, benefits. privi leges authorizations and cnti tlcments upon its completion. tn tenus of the said agreement IPBTL 
has an obligation to complete construction of the projeci of fou r laning of Bikaner Palaudi section and to keep the project assets in 

proper working condition includi ng al! projects assets whose li ves have expired 

The Concession period shall be 26 years commencing from the appointment date which is 14th October 2015. AI the end of the 
concession period, the assets will be transrerred back to Nation:!1 Highw<lY Au thority or India (N HAI). In case or material breach in 

terms of agreement the NHAI and Ircon PI)T L have right to lerminate the agreement if they arc not able to cure the event of default in 
accordance with such agreement. 

The Company recognizes revcnue and cost in accordance with Ind AS I J 5 by reference to the construction's stage of completion. The 
Company measures contract revenue at the rair value of the consideration receivable, During the alTangement's construction phase, the 
Company's assets of 522.64 crores (representing its accumulating right to be paid for providing construction services minus the Equity 

support due fr'om NHAI) is classified BS an intangible assets (license to charge user of the inrrastructure), SInce 2nd provisional COD 
has been received on 04.11.20 fol' 100010 physical completion, Inta ngible asset has been cre<llcd uplO that extent. The Company has 

recognized revenue orNil ( Previous year·Rs 0 ,01 crores) on construct ion of intangible assets under service concession agreement for 

the period upto 3 1.03.22. Company has rccogmscd revenue for change in scope ( COS) works of the toll road for Rs 7.86 Crores ( prev 

year R.s 11.66 crores) upto 31.03.2022 The Company has recognized nil profit on construction of intangible assets under service 
concession arrangement and also COS works .The revenue recognized in relation to construction of intangible assets under service 

concession alTallgement represents the fair value of services provided towards construction or intangible assets under service concession 
arrangement. The operation oftoU road bas commenced from 15th Feb 2019 , and the during the year company has recognised usage fee 
asrevenue orRs. 47.61 Crores ( Previous Year - Rs, 43,19 Cr) from operation oftoH roads. 

Usage fee collected over and above the traffic cap as per the concession agreement is termed as e:(cess fee. Since the Toll Road har 
recently been completed in November 2020 alld only a little more ,han a year has passed since . impm:t of excess fee al presellt i,'i /lot 
ascertainable, flO provision or a~sessmel!l o/lhe SUII/e has been dOlle . 

Construction Contl'ads 
In terms oCthe di sclosure required in rnd AS ·115 "Revenue fj'om Contract with Customers" , the amount considered in the fin<lncial 

statements up to the ba lance sheet date are as follows:-

Particulars 

Revenue recognized from construction services 

Revenue recognised rrom tolt~Usagc rcc 
Aggregate amounL of cost incun-ed and recognized in Profit/Loss 

Gross amount due from Client for Contract Works frail Road 

Amount in Rs Crores 

As at 31st Mar As at 31st 
2022 Mar 2021 

7.86 

47.18 
7.86 

1.11 

11.67 
43.19 
11.67 

12.38 
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IRCON PD TOLLWAY LIMITED (C IN - U45400DL2014GOI272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements ((lr the year ended Mar 31 2022 

Note:~ 24 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" 
There has been no material change in the significant accounting policies in the current fInancial year in comparison 
with last year. which would have any impact on the presentation ofthe financial statements. 

Note:~ 25 Disclosure as required by Ind AS 8 "Accounting PaJicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" 

During the year the Company has cbanged the accounting policy related to "Dividend". There is no impact on the 
profotabiHty of the Company, and the revised accounting policy is as below and amendments are highlighted in Bold 

Proposed amendment in Accounting Policy 

Dividend 
Annual Dividend distribution to the Company's equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the period in which 

dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as liability on approval by the Board of 

Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distributi~n if any. is recognized directly in equity. 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014GO(272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

Note:· 

Note:· 

26 Employee Benefits 

27 

Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" are as under: 

The employees working for IrconPBTollwayLimited (lPBTL) are posted on deputation I secondment and are on the rolls 

of Ireon International Limited, the Holding Company. Their PF contIibutions. pension contributions, gratuity, leave 
encashment and other retirement benefits have been accounted for on the basis of invoices / debit advises from its 

holding company. The provision for gratuity and other retirement benefits of employees on deputation in tenns of IND 

AS-19 is being made by its Holding Company as pcr its accounting policies. 

Provident fund contribution and pension contribution of the employees on deputation has been regularly deposited by 

the holding company with its P. F. Trust. 

Foreign exchange recognised in the Statement or Profit and Loss: 

Nil 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014GOI272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

Notc:-

a) 

28 Related Party Transactions 
Disclosures in compliance with Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures" are as under: 

List of Related Parties 

(I) Holding Company 
Ireon International Limited 

(ii) Non- Executive Directors 

Name Designation 
Shri Shyam Lal Gupt. Chainnan ( upto 13th May 2021) 
Shri Yogesh Kumar Misra Chahman (w.<.f 13.0S.2021 upto 01.10.2021 ) 
Shri Ashok Kumar Goyal Director+ 
Shri Parag Venna Director (w.e.f. 29.12.2021) 
Shri B. Mugunthan Director 
Smt Ritu Arora Director ( w.e.f 13.0S.2021) 

.. Shrl AsJwk Kllmar Goyal was re-designated as Chall-man of th e CompallY vice Shn Yogesli Kumar Misra 
w.ef 01. 10.2021 

"'. All the Directors are Part-Time (Nomillee) Directors lIolllinaled by the holding Compafl)' (i.e. It"COIi 

International Umiled). 

Other Members identified as Key Manngemcnt Personnel (KMP) 

Name Designation 
Shri Ruiu Maruti Kambale Chief ExecutinR Officer 
Ms. Meenakshi Garg Chief Financial Officer (upto 01.07.2021) 
Shri Nagendra Joshi Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 01.07.201 upto 03.08.2021) 
Sbri S. K. Dandyopadhyay CbiefFinaneial Officer (w.e.f. 03.08.2021 upto 31.01.2022) 
Shri Anil Kaushal Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 24.02.2022) 

Com nny Secretar 
Name Designation 

Ms. Anuradba Kaushlk Company Secretary 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (eIN - U45400DL2014G0I272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

b} Transactions with Key Management Personnel (KMP) ofthe Company are as follows: 

S.No. Particulars 

1 Short term employee benefits 

2 Post employment benefits 

J Other long-tenn employee benefi ts 

• Tenninatioll bellefits 

5 Sitting fees 

Total 

Transactions with other rel ated parties are as follows' 

Nature of 
S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party 

relationship 

1 Purchase of goods and services Ircon International Lmited Holding Company 

2 
Reimbursement of Deputation Staff Expenses, 

Ircon Inlemationai Lmited Holding Company 
Rent & Other Misc. Expenses (Income) 

J Imerest Expense 

3.1 Interest Expense on Loan Ireon International Lmiled Holding Company -. Repayment of Loans freon Internati onal Lmitcd Holding Company 

5 Advances ILoans Received Treon International Lm ited HoldinJ:: Company 

6 Purchase of Fixed Asset (excluding GST) [reon intClllational Lmitcd Holding Company 

7 Deemed Capital Contribution heon Inlernuliona[ Lmited Holding Company 

(Rs. in crore) 

For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 

March 2022 March 2021 

0.10 0.64 

0,42 0.03 

0.07 

0.00 

0.00 

0.52 0.74 

(Rs. in erore) 

For the year For the year 
ended 31st ended 31st 

March 2022 March 2021 

7.86 11.8S 

0.03 0.02 

15.44 

45.00 81.22 

- 0.12 

65.79 0 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014GOI272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

c) Outstanding balances with the related parties arc as follows' . . 
S.No. Nature of transaction Name of related party 

Nature of 
relationship 

I Jrcon illternauonal 

1 Equity Received ( Liability) Limited Holding Company 

Deemed Capital Contribution Ireon International 

la ( Liability) Limited Holding Company 

2 Irean International 
Borrowings Limited Holding Company 

Amount Payable towards 

1 Trade Payables and other freon International 
reimbursements Limited Holding Company 

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with rf~lated parties 

(Rs in croTe) 

As at 31st Mar As at 31st Mar 
2022 2021 

165.00 165.00 

65,79 -

240,66 336.00 

17,94 14,92 

-

(i) 
Transactions with related parties arc made on tcnns equivalent to those that prevail ill aim's length transactions, except in 
case orbon-owings details of whi ch arc mentioned in note 12. 1 (b). 

(ii) Outstanding balances of reialed parties at the year-end are unsecured and se ttlement occurs through banking transactions. 
These balances other than loans and interest bearing advances are interest free. 

(iii) The loans to key management personnel are on the same tenns and conditions as applicable to all olher employees, 
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IReON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014G0l272220) 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended l\lar 31 2U22 

Note:- 29 Earnings Per Share 

Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 'Earnings per share' 

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the year. 

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to Ihe equity holders afierconsidering the effect of dilution by weighted 

average number of equity shares olltstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion 

ohl[ the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares. 

(0 Basic and diluted earnin~s per share (in Rs.) 

For Ihe 
For the 

year ended 
year 

Particulars Note ended 31st 
Jist March, 

March, 
2022 

2021 

Profit attributable to Equ ity holders (Rs. in crore) (i i) (24.62) (21.38) 

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS 

(in erore) (iii) 16.50 16.50 

Earnings per share (Basic) (1.49) (1.30) 

Eamings per share (Diluted) (1.49) (1.30) 

Faee value per sllare 10.00 10.00 

(ii) Profit attributable to equity shareholders (used as numerator) (Ih. in crore) 

For the 
Forthe 

year ended 
year 

Particulars ended 31st 
31st M arch, 

March., 
2022 

2021 

Profit for thc _year as per Statement of Profit and Loss (24.62) (2 1.38) 

Profit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for computing EPS: (24.62) (21.38) 

(iii) WciJ,:hted a\'era~e number of equity s hllres (used as denominator) (Nos.) 

For th e 
For the 

year ended 
yellr 

Particulars ended 31st 
31st March, 

Much, 
2022 2021 

Opening bnlance of issued equity shares 16.50 16.50 

Equity shares issued during the year - -
Weighted average number of equity shares for compuling Basic EPS 16.50 16.50 

Dilution Effect: 

Add: Weighted average numbers of potential equity shares outstanding during the -
Weighted average number of equity shares for eomputi ll!?,. D iluted EPS 16.50 16.50 

Note:- 30 Impairment of Assets 

In compliance ofTnd AS 36 "Impairment of Assets", the Company has reviewed the assets at year-end for indication of impaimlent loss, 

if any, as per the accounting pol icy of the Company. As there is no indic ation of impairment, no impaimlent loss has been recognised 

during the year. 
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Note:- 31 Pl'Ovisions, Contingencies and Commitments 

(I) Provisions 
:rhe nature of provisions provided and movement in provisions during the year as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets' are disclosed in Note- J3 

(iI) Contingent Liabilities 

Disclosure of Contingent Lillhi litics as per Ind AS 37 'Provisions. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets' is as under:-

(Rs in crore) 

Claims settled during the year 

As at 31st Addition 
Out of 

As at 31st 

Particulars March during the Oulofthe Total Claims March 

2021 opening 
addition 

Settled during 2022 year 

balance 
during 

the year 
the year 

.j Claims against the Company not 
acknowledged as debts: - - - - - -

bj 
Guarantees (excluding finaneifll guaratees) 
issued by the company on behalf of - - -

oj Other money for which company is contingent 
liable"''' 

132.63 - 132.63 -
- 132.63 - - - 132.63 

M= R~ 132.63 Crores mentioned ahove per/ains to Olll! It,come tax demand/or FY 201 7-18 against which appeal has been/lied with the 
Income Tax departmenl. 

(Iii) Commitments (Rs. in crore) 

Particulars Foot Note 
As at 31st March 

As at 31st Murch 2021 
2022 

'J Capita l Comm itments 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capitlll 
1 account (net of advance) and not provided for: 

Foot Note: (Rs. in crore) 

S.No Cap ital Commitments As lit 31st March As at 31st March 2021 

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to 

1 be executed on Property, Plant and 

Estimated amount ofeontmcts remaining to be executed on Investment 

2 Property 

Estimated amount ofcontraets remaining to be executed on Intangible AssefS 

3 under development 

Tolal 
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IRCON PB TOLLWAY LfMlTED (ClN - U4S400DLl014G0I272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 312022 

Note:- 32 Segment Reporting 
Disclosure as per lnd AS lOS" Opemting Segment~ is given as under: 

A. General information 
Operating segmentll arc defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financ ial infonnation is available which is being evaluated regularly by the Chief Opcnlting Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding 

how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) The opera ting segments have been reported in a manner consistent with 

the internal reponing l'lrovided to the Chief Opcrating Decision Maker (COOM) for review ofpcrformanee and allocating resources. 

The Company has determined only one reportable segment, information given below 15 for only such segment 

B. [nformation about reportable segments and reconciliation to amounts renected in the financial stahemen.s: 

(Rs.1 \ .... 3 •• " utl.e, 

lntcrnalional Domestic Total 

Particulars For tbe year ended For the rear ended For the year ended For the year ended For the} ear ended For the: year ended 
JISI March 2022 3ht March 2021 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 20n 31st March 2021 

Segcme:nt Re\enue 

Revenue from external cu~lomers - - 55.46 54.S6 55.46 54.86 
Add· Com any's share of turnover in integrated joint operations - - - - -
Total Operatin~ Revenue - - 55.46 54.86 55.46 54.86 
Interest income - - 0.23 0.30 0.23 0.30 
Other Income - - 0.09 0.14 0.09 0.14 
Inter · se ont - - - - - -
Total Reven ue - - 55.18 55.30 55.78 55.30 

Se<Jement Result 

Profit before provision, depreciation, interest and exceptional item - 35.36 12.08 35.36 12.08 
",dtax 

Less: Provisons and write back - - (21.44) (2.09) (21.44 2M\ 
Less: Depreciation,amortization and impairment (23.IO) (23.0S) (23.IO) (23.0S) 

Less: Interest - (15.44) - (IS.«) -
Prcfit before tax - - (24.62) 13.09 (24.62 (13.09) 
Less: Tax expense S.'29 - S.29) 
Profit after tax - - (24.62 (21.38 (24.62 (2138\ 

-v ~--- ~ 
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C.Other Informatioa 
(lb. in crore) 

[ntuDational Domestic Total 
Particulars For the )ear ended For the year ended For the year ended For the year coded For the year ended For tht year ended 

31st March 2021 31st March 2021 31 51 March 2022 31st March 2021 3ht March 2022 :nu March 2021 

Total Assets. 484.78 509.34 484.78 509.34 

Total Liabilities 315.37 381.10 315.37 381.10 

Investment injoinl vCnlurcs accounted for by equity method 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Non current asset other than financial instruments. deferred tax assets, 
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

net defined benefit assets 

Capital Expenditure for the year ending (Addition to PPE, CWIP. 
Investment Property. Other Intangible As..~ct.~, Intangible asscl~ under 0.02 (14.92) 0.Q1 (14.92) 

development and Rie:ht-m-use) 

D. Infonnatlon about major customer 

The Company is engaged in the businCliS of construction ,operation. mainlcnancc of To I! Road and ib major rCVCllue is from the collection or the Toll Proceeds from the vehicles that usc the said Toll Road. 
Approximately 85.06% ( Prc:vioU5 Year 711.73%%) of the revenue has arisen from thest during the period ended March 31. 2022, in the Domestic Segment only. Remaining approximately 14.94% (Previous Year 
21.21%) revenue is foc construe lion of Tol l Road under service concession agreement with NHAI. 

-\~ ~ r 
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IRCON PH TOLLWAY LIMITED (ClN - U45400DL2014G0l272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mat> 312022 

Note:- 33 Disclosure as required by Tnd AS 115 "Reyenue from contrllct with customers" 

A. Disaggregation of Revenue 
Set out below is the disaggreglltion of the Company's revenue from contracts with customcrs into operating segment and type of product or services: 

(Rs. In crore 
For Ihe nar elided Mal'eh 31 2022 

Revenulllls per Ind AS 115 Method for measuring Total as per 
performance obligation Statement of 

Type of Product or Services 
Other Profit and Loss 

Revellu !Segment 

Domestic Total Input Method 
Output , 

Reporting 
Method 

Railwa s - - -
Highwa 55.46 55.46 55.46 - 55.46 
Electrical -
Building -
Others -
Total 55.46 - 55.46 55.46 - - 55.46 

Out of the total revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 during the year, Rs 7.86 Crores is recogllised over a period oftime :lIld Rs. 47.61 crore 
recognised at a point In time. 

(Rs. in crore 
For the year Ilnded March 31, 2021 

Method for measuring Total as per 
Revenull as per Ind AS 115 

performance obligation Other Statement of 
Type of Product or Services 

Revenu Profit and Loss 

Domestic.' TOfal Iuput Method 
Output , ISegment 
Method Reporting 

Railwa s - - -
Hi w, 54.86 54.1\6 54.86 54 .86 
Electrical - -
Building -
Others - - -
Total 54.86 - 54.86 54.86 54.86 

Out of the totllJ revenue recognised under Ind AS 115 dul'ing the year, Rs 11.66 crore is recognised oyer a period of time and Rs. 43.20 crore 

n. Contract balances 
(Rs. in eron 

ParUculal's 
As III 31st r-.lnr 2022 

MatJlstMJlI' 
2021 

Trodc Receivables ote?!) 1.11 12.38 
Contract Assets (Note 5 llnd 7.4 0.19 1.79 
Contract Liabilities -

(I) Trade rect:ivables are non-interest bearing und the customer profile indud~s National Highwuy Authority of India (NHAI) and Toll Collection Agency. The 
Company's average project execution cycle is around 24 to 36 months. General paynwnt terms include p~lyments for utility ~hi ning reimbursements and 
change in scope of work lTIutuaJ!y agreed upon ifany, with a cret.Et period mngi ng from 60 to 180 days or when the work is certified.Payments also includes 
Toll receipts for use of Toll collected by the Toll Collection Agency for the Company. Project executed by the Company is under BOT ( bui lt operate 
transfer) model and the payments are on account of Toll Collection and addition31 works by NI [AI, Jf.my. 

(ii) Contract Assets arc recogniscd ovcr the period in which servIces arc perfonned to represcnt the Compally's right to considerat ion in exchange for goods or 
services transfe rred to the customer. It includes balances due from customers under construction contrllcfS that arise wheu the Company receives payments 
from customers as per tenns of the contracts however the revenue is recognised over the period under input method. Any amount previously recugniscd as a 
contract asset is reclassified to tmde receivables on satis raction of the condition attached i.e. future service which is necessary to achieve the billing 
milestone. 

Movement in C(lntract balances during th~ year 
(Rs. in erore 

Particula rs 
As lit 31 st M ill" ASllt31stl\Tar 

2022 2021 
Contract asset at the Be innin of the '" 1.79 1.84 
Contract asset at the end of the '" 0.1 9 1.79 
Net Inerellsc/decrcase 1.60 V.05 

During the year 2021 -22 and 202()-21 there has been a net IncreDsd(decrease) ofRs ( {J.64) crores nud Rs 0.83 crores respcclively as compared 10 previous 
year mainly dUll to recognition of Revenue based on input method. whereas the bi lls for work done ~Ire cenified based on contract condition. DUring the year 
ended March 31 st 2022, Rs a.g3 crores and Murch 31st 2021 Rs Nil ofeontroCI a.sets as on April l ~ t 2021 and Aprillst2020 respect ively were rechlssifed 
to lrade receivables upon billing to customers on completion o f milestones. 
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fRs. in crore 

Particu la rs 
As at 31st Asat31stMa r 
Mar 2022 202 1 

Contract liabi lities at the beginning of the year 
Contract liabilities at the end ofthe year 

Net increase/decrease 

C Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from: 
(Hs. in crore 

Par ticulars 
As at 31st As a t 31st Mar 
Mar 2022 2021 

Amount included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the -
Ptl'formance obli alion satisfied in revious ,,~ 

D Cost to obta in the contract 
Amount recognised as asset as at 31st March, 2022 is Rs. Nil (As at 31st March, 2021 : Rs. Nil) 
Amount of am ortis ali on recognised in lhe statement of profit and loss during the year is Rs. Nil (FY 2020-21: Rs. N il) 

E Performance obligation 
Infonnation about the Company's performance obligations arc summarised 

below: 

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or pal1ially 
unsatisfied) as at 3 I March arc, as follows: 

Within one year 
More than one year to 2 years 
More than 2 years 
Total 

(Rs. in crore) 
As at 3 1st As at 3 hi Mar 
M ar 2022 2021 
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lReON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014GOI272220) 

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 312022 

Note:- 34 Leases 

a) Company as a Lessee 

The Company as a lessee has entered into two lease contracts, for office space and guest house. Before the 
adoption oflnd AS 116, the Company classified each of ils leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a 
finance lease or an operating lease. These leases are in nature of short term leases and are operating leases. 

Lease Liabilities 

Set out below are th e canying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year: 

Opening Balance 
Addition 
Accredition of interest 
Payments 

Closing Balance 
C urrent 
Non-curren t 

Amounts recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 

(Rs. in crore; 

As at As at 
31st March, 2022 31st March, 2021 

(Rs. in crore) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
~ __ ~~ ________ ~~ __ ~ ________________________ ~3~ls~t~~~al~'c~h~2~0~2~2 ____ ~3~Is~tMarch 2021 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 
Interest expense on lease liabilities 
Expense relating to short-term leases (Refer Note 18) 0.03 0.04 

0.03 0.04 

b) Company as a Lessor 
At present, Company has not given any item on tease. 
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IRCONPB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN" U45401}DL20I 4G0I272220) 
Not~s to Financial Stat~01entli for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

Note:. 35 Information In respect of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as required by Micro, Smlllllllld Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED 
Act) . 

(Rs. in crore) 

S.No. Partlculllrs As at 315t Mar As lit 315t Mar 
2022 2021 

The principal amount lUJd [he interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as al the end of each accounting 

1 
year: 

Principal amount due 10 micro and small enterprises 
Interest due on above 

2 
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in temlS of Section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during eaeh accounting year 

3 
TIle amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have becn paid but beyond the 
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specificd under thc MSMED Act 2006 

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid lit the end of each accounting year . 
The amount of further intercst remaining due and payable even in the succeed ing years, until such dale when the interest 

5 dues as above arc actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance a~ a deductible expenditure under 
Scction 23 of the MSMED Act 2006 
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NOTE 36 
IReON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED (CIN - U45400DL2014G0I272220) 

OTHER STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

DisdosUI'e of mUos 

a ) March 31, Reason for change more 
Particulars Numerator Denominatol" March 31, 2021 % change 

2022 than 25% 

Current ratio Current Assets CUlTcnt Liabilities 
0.58 0.60 -1.53% NA 

Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder's The decrease in ratio is on 
Equity account of increase in equity 

on account of deemed capital 
contribution, and 

1.42 2.62 -119.94% corresponding decrease ;n 

debt and further repayment 0 

loans. 

Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for Debt service - The improvement in ratio is 
debt service = Interest & Lease all account of decrease in cash 
Net profit after Payments + losses and lower principal 
taxes + Non- Principal Ll 8 0.48 t43.69% payments as compared to 
cash operating Repayments previous years. 
expenses 

Retum on equity rati o Net Protits Average 

after taxes - Shareholder's 
Pre ference EqUity -0.1 7 0.15 -7 .5 1% NA 
Dividend 

Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods Average Inventory 
NA NA NA 

sold 

Trade receivables turnover ratio Net credit Average Trade 
sales ~ Gross Receivable 
credit sales - 1.23 1.06 16.09% NA 
sa les return 

Trade payable turnover ratio Net credit Average Trade Decrease in ratio ;s on 
purchases =' Payables nccount of Higher average 
Gross credit 

-57. 17% 
creditors o f Holding Company 

purchases 
0.45 1.06 

wh ich payable in the - arc 
purchase current year. 

retUI11 

Net capital turnover ratio Net sales - Working capital " 
Tok'1l sales - Cum~nt nssets 
satcs return Current liabilities 

-2.3 1 -2.33 -0.98% NA 

Net profit ratio Net Profit Net sales - Total 
sales - sales return 

-0.44 -0.39 -13.91% NA 
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Retum on capital employed Earnings Cap ita l Employed - The decrease in this ratio is on 
before interest Tangible Net Worth account of reduction of total 
and taxes + Total Debt + debt in comparison to 

Deferred Tax previous year due to loan 
Liability repayments and deemed 

0.24 6.36 ~96 .l7% capital contribution on 
account of interest waiver, 
resulting in lower negative 
capital employed and thereby 
affecting the ratio. 

Retun on investment Interest Investment 
(Finance NA NA NA NA 
Income) 

b) For the year 2021 M 22, Toll operations were affected during the 2nd wave of the Covid 19 pandemic from April 2 1 to June 21, but resumed 
subsequently The duration and impact of the COVID-19 pandemic remains unclear at present as on reporting date. Hence, it is not possible to reliably 
estimate the duration and severity of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and results of the Company for future 
periods. However, the company is protected by the clauses 29.6 of the Concession Agreement to claim such loss under force majeure event in the 
fonn of revenue loss compensation by way of extension o f the concession period. 

c) The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial ycar. 

d) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off. 

e) TIle Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person (s) or entity(is), including foreign enti ties (Intermediaries) with the 
understanding that the Intemlediary shall : 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other pcrsons or entities identified in ally manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

f) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), inc ludi ng foreign entities (Fu nding Party) with the understanding (whether 
recorded in writing or othelwise) that the Company shall: 

(a) directly or indi rectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Pmiy 
(Ult imate Beneficiaries) or 

g) The Company does not have any loans and advances in the nature oflonns to promote rs, directors, KMP and othcr re lated parties. 

h) The Company does not have any changes in accounting policy or prior period errors. 
i) 1he company does 110t have any tlenal11l property, wJlere any proceedmg has been 111ltHited or pending agamst [he company tor hOldmg any J:::Scnaml 

nrnnprl v 

j) The Company does not have any title deeds of immovable properti es not he ld in name orthe company. 

k) Company is not requircd to submi t statcment of current assets with the bank and therefore reconcilation of the statement filed by the company with 

I) The Company does not have any investment property. 

111) The Company has not revalued any item of property, plant and equipment and Intang ible Asset 

n) The Company does not have any transacti ons where the company has not used the bOlTowings fi·om banks an d financial institutions for the specific 

0) The Company does not have allY transaction wh ich is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been subsequently surrendered or disc losed as 

p) Company has not received any gran ts and donati ons. 

q) The Company has not been declared as wilful defn ulter by any bank or fi mmcial institution or govemment or any govemll1cnt authority. 

1') Tllc Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under th e Companies Act, 2013. 

s) There are no charges or satisfaction of charge yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the Statutory Period. 

t) The Company have not entered into any scheme(s) of arrangements dUling the financial year. 

u) Since Company have no Lease in the books threfore no disclosure is required. 
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m e ON PB TOLLWAY LI MITED (CIN - U45400DL2014GOI272220) 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended Mar 31 2022 

Note:- 37 Corporate Social Responsihility Expenses (CSR) 
The Company is not covered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and no CSR expenditure has been incurred during the period. 

Note:- 38 Other disclosures 

a) Some of the balances shown under debtors, advances and creditors are subject to confirmation 1 reconciliation! adjustment, if any. The Company has 
been sending lettcrs for confirmation to parties. However, the Company does not expect any material dispute w.r.t. the recoverabiHty/payment of the 
same. 

b) In the opinion of the management, the value of current assets, loans and advances on realization in the ordinal)' course of business, will not be less than 
the value al which these are stated in the balance sheet. 

c) An amount of Rs 21.25 Crares ( Previous year: Nil) under Claims recoverable rrom C lient, relates to Bills related to Utility shifting- Rs 2.67 Crares 
and Change of Scope ( COS) works for Rs 18.58 Crores, which are due from the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI).In previous years the 
COS receivables were classified as trade receivables, while the dues related to Utility shifti ng being reimburseable from Client were classified under 
"Other Financial Assets"- Others. Thcsc dues arc still under reconciliation and eCltification from the Client and hence classified under Claims 
recoverable from Client, in the current year. 

d) An amount of VAT on works contract receivable for Rs 57.47 Lakhs is appeari ng in 'other receivables' under Currcnt Assets - Other Financial Assets 

(Note 7 A) beIng the VAT deducted by NHAI in the previous V AT regime on utility shifting. Efforts are being made for recovery of the same from the 

Client I Tax Department. Recovery ofamoun1 due from NHAI on account of Utility shifting is under reconciliation. 

e) During the financial year ended 31.3.2022, Company has raised invoice to NHAI for work done under Change or Scope of Rs 7.86 Crare (Rs. 11.66 
Crore for 31/031202 1). This Amounts reflected as claims recoverablefrom Client ( Note 7.4) and these amounts are under reconciliation with the NHAI 
and is yet to be received from I confirmed by NHAL 

t) Certain prior periods amou nts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentations. These reclassifications have no effect on the 
reported resu lts of operations. Also, previous year figu res are shown under bracket () to dirferenti ate from current year figures. 

g) IRCON International Limi ted, the Holdi ng Company vide board approval dated August 12, 2021 has wai ved interest on its Loan for the period October 
01, 2019 till March 31, 2024. The Company has measured fHir va lue or the loan and the difference between fair value and the loan amount has been 
presen ted as "Deemed Capital Contribution" tll1der Other Equi ty in accordance with provis ions of Illd AS. (refer note II ) 

As per our Report of evcn date at.tached 

For A.N. Garg & Co. 

Chartered A:cc::o~u~n~t~~::::,,. 

for and on behalf of Board of Directors 

(Director) 
(DIN No: 9008553) 

M. No. 083687 ~"'" 
UDIN < 20S !6.3 7 A iJ t1 H A ~S~80 (R .. Kambalc) 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 23-05-22 

(Chief Executive Office r) 

(MU~h~&Wda) 
(Director) 
(DIN No. 8517013) 

(An~ ~/ 
(Anuradha Kaushik) 

(Chief Finance Officer) ( Company Secretary) 



 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 
CERTIFICATION 

 

We have reviewed the Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & 
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 2021-22 and to the best of our 
knowledge and belief: 

1. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statement that might be misleading; 
 

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company‘s affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 
 

3. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company‘s General 
Code of Conduct as agreed to be followed by the Directors and Senior Management of the 
Company. 
 

4. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial 
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the 
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the Auditors deficiencies in 
the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are aware and the steps we 
have taken or propose to rectify these deficiencies. 
 

5. We have indicated to the Auditor any changes in Accounting Policies that may have been 
affected during the year, and that the same have been disclosed in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements; and 
 

6. There was no instance of fraud of which we are aware nor there has been involvement of 
the Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control 
system over financial reporting.  

 

 

                Sd/-                          Sd/- 
     Raju Maruti Kambale                                                                            Vinod Prasad  
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)                                                    Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
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For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Audltor General of lndia

UL^*, I 4.o 2dPlace: New Delhi
Dated:4.07.2022 Principal Di

Vikram D. Mu
rector of Au

taj
dit

Railway Commercial, New Delhi

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
rNDtA UNDER SECTTON 143(6) (b) oF rHE COMPAN|ES ACT, 2013,
ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON PB TOLLWAY
LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON pB TOLLWAY
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2O2Z in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed underthe Companies Act, 2013,
is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory
Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of lndia under
Section '139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the
financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent
audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 23 May 2022.

l, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of lndia, have
decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of
IRCON PB TOLLWAy LIM|TED for the year ended 3.1 March 2022 under
Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act.
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF 

INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6) (b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, 

ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF IRCON PB TOLLWAY 

LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON PB TOLLWAY 

LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the 

financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013, 

is the responsibility of the management of the Company. The Statutory 

Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under 

Section 139 (5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the 

financial statements under Section 143 of the Act, based on independent 

audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under 

Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide 

their Audit Report dated 23 May 2022. 

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have 

decided not to conduct supplementary audit of the financial statements of 

IRCON PB TOLLWAY LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2022 under 

Section 143 (6)(a) of the Act. 

Place: New Delhi 
Dated: 28.07.2022 

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India 

p. 
U · o 

Vikram D. Muru raj 
Principal Director of Audit 

Railway Commercial, New Delhi 
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